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nCependent Audifors Report

To the Members of SAMHI Hotels Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the standalone financial statements of SAMHI Hotels Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the standalone statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(*Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

1. We draw attention to Note 49 to the standalone financial statements, which explains the
management's assessment of going concern assumption and financial impact on account of COVID-
19 pandemic situation and its assertion that based on best estimates made by it, the Company will
continue as a going concern i.e. continue its operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and
realise its assets, for the foreseeable future.

2. We draw attention to Note 46 to the standalone financial statements which indicates that the
comparative information presented as at 1 April 2020 and as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021
has been restated to correct the accounting pertaining to subsequent measurement for Fully
Compulsory Convertible Debentures.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

 OtherInformation

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not include
the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
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express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

°  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
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basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 37 to the standalone financial
statements.

b. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts —
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Refer Note 21 to the standalone financial statements.

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 54 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall:

» directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

»  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 51 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

o directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

+  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ili) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) above contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its director during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section
197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section
197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

LA .
(&ﬁfmwﬂ“ e

Vikram Advani

Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 091765
Date: 29 November 2022 ICAI UDIN: 22091765BEJYYI13093
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of SAMHI Hotels Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Reguirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in period of three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment
were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies

were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable property (“Freehold Land”)
disclosed in the standalone financial statements are not held in the name of the Company,
details of which are as follows:

(d)

Description Gross Held in the Whether Period held- | Reason for
of property carrying name of promoter, indicate not being
value director or | range, where | held in the
their appropriate name of

relative or the
employee Company

4th Block, | INR 548,000 | SAMH! No April 2012 Refer Note

Municipal thousand Hotels 52 to the

No.1/2, 58th Private standalone

'C' Cross, Limited financial

4th 'M' Block, statements

Rajajinagar,

Bangalore

S.Nos. INR 235,107 | SAMHI No November Refer Note

153/5, thousand Hotels 2011 52 to the

153/6, 153/7 Private standalone

and 153/8 Limited financial

Mambakkam statements

village,

Sriperambud

ur Taluk,

Kanchipura

m district,

Chennai

However, original title deeds are under lien with bank for the loan facilities availed by the
Company. Therefore, we could not verify those title deeds and have not received independent
confirmation from bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of SAMHI Hotels Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

(e)

(i) (a)

(b)

(i)

(@

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Refer Note 51 to the standalone financial
statements.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets.
As informed to us and as per the terms of sanction letter of such limits, there is no requirement
on the company to submit quarterly returns or statement with such bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in or given any
advances in the nature of loans or provided guarantee to companies, firms, limited liability
partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has provided security and has
granted loans to companies and other parties during the year, in respect of which the requisite
information is as below. The Company has not provided any-security or granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to limited liability partnership during the year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has provided loans and security to any other entity as below:

Particulars Security , Loans

Aggregate amount during the year

Subsidiaries*® INR 6,255,950 thousand | INR 1,185,800 thousand

Others - INR 15,650 thousand

Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date in respect of above
cases

INR 8,255,950 thousand | INR 1,202,697 thousand
Subsidiaries*
- INR 15,721 thousand
Others

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

During the current year, the Company converted its investment in 8,328,975 Fully Compulsorily
Convertible Debentures (‘FCCDs") of Barque Hotels Private Limited (“subsidiary company”) into
equity shares of such subsidiary company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the security given during the year and the terms and conditions
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of SAMHI Hotels Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

(©)

(d)

of the loans granted during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company. The Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party during
the year. Terms and conditions of interest-bearing loans to subsidiaries and other parties are
not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Interest free loans and securities given are only
to protect its investments in subsidiary companies and accordingly, not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts, where
applicable, have been regular except for the following cases where there is no stipulation of
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest and accordingly we are unable to
comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest:

Name of the entity Amount Remarks
SAMHI  Hotels (Gurgaon) | INR 313,673 thousand There is no stipulation of
Private Limited repayment of principal or

payment of interest

Barque Hotels Private Limited | INR 2,436,816 thousand There is no stipulation of
repayment of principal or
payment of interest

CASPIA Hotels Private | INR 2,351,765 thousand There is no stipulation of
Limited repayment of principal or
payment of interest

Ascent Hotels Private Limited | INR 315,252 thousand There is no stipulation of
repayment of principal or
payment of interest

Argon Hotels Private Limited | INR 1,748,973 thousand There is no stipulation of
repayment of principal or
payment of interest

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in case of loans given amounting to INR 7,166,479 thousand
(as on 31 March 2022) to various subsidiaries (details provided below), the schedule for
repayment of principal and payment of interest have not been stipulated and accordingly we are
unable to comment on the amount overdue for more than ninety days.

Name of the entity Amount Remarks
SAMHI  Hotels (Gurgaon) | INR 313,673 thousand There is no stipulation of
Private Limited repayment of principal or

payment of interest

Barque Hotels Private Limited | INR 2,436,816 thousand There is no stipulation of
repayment of principal or
payment of interest
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{Continued)

Name of the entity Amount Remarks
CASPIA  Hotels  Private | INR 2,351,765 thousand There is no stipulation of
Limited repayment of principal or

payment of interest
Ascent Hotels Private Limited | INR 315,252 thousand There is no stipulation of
repayment of principal or

payment of interest
Argon Hotels Private Limited | INR 1,748,973 thousand There is no stipulation of
repayment of principal or

payment of interest

(e)

®

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling due during the year, which has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given
to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment except for the following loans to its related parties as defined in Clause (76)
of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”):

Particulars Related Parties

Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of loan
- Repayable on demand (A)
- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of | Nil

Repayment (B) INR 254,550 thousand
Total (A+B) INR 254,550 thousand
Percentage of loans to the total loans 21%

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, in respect of loans, guarantees and security given by the Company,
in our opinion the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) have been
complied with. The Company has complied with Section 186(1) of the Act. According to the
information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 186 (except for sub-section
(1) of the Section 186) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company since the
Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
rendered or goods sold by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise and Sales tax
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(Continued)

during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (‘GST"),
Value Added Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though
there have been slight delays in a few cases of Provident fund and Employees State Insurance.
Further, in respect of Income-Tax, the Company has been irregular in depositing the sum due
throughout the year and the amount involved is INR 75,580 thousand.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Value Added Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable, except as mentioned below:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Due Date of
statute the dues which the date payment
amount
relates
The Employees’ | Provident INR 148 | March 2019 | 15 April | Not yet paid
Provident Fund & | Fund thousand 2019
Miscellaneous (Additional
Provisions Act, | liability due
1952 to Supreme
Court
judgement)
Refer Note
37 to the
standalone
financial
statements
Central Goods and | Interest INR 320 | April 2021 - | # Not yet paid
Services Tax Act, | liability on | thousand August 2021
2017, State Goods | Goods and
and Services Tax | Service tax
Act, 2017 and
Integrated  Goods
and Services Act,
2017
Central Goods and | Interest INR 179 | April 2020 - | ## Paid on 13
Services Tax Act, | liability on | thousand August 2021 June 2022
2017, State Goods | Goods and
and Services Tax | Service tax
Act, 2017 and
Integrated  Goods
and Services Act,
2017
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Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Due Date of
statute the dues which the date payment
amount
relates
Central Goods and | Interest INR 571 | April 2020 - | ## Not yet paid
Services Tax Act, | liability on | thousand August 2021
2017, State Goods | Goods and
and Services Tax | Service tax
Act, 2017 and
Integrated  Goods
and Services Act,
2017
income Tax Act, | Tax INR 18,013 | April 2021- | # Paid on 30
1961 deducted at | thousand August 2021 June 2022
source
Income Tax Act, | Tax INR 615 | April 2021- | # Paid on 01
1961 deducted at | thousand August 2021 July 2022
source

Central Goods and | Goods and | INR 2,983 | April 2020 — | 20 April | Paid on 13
Services Tax Act, | Service Tax | thousand March 2021 | 2021 June 2022
2017, State Goods
and Services Tax
Act, 2017 and
Integrated  Goods
and Services Act,
2017
Central Goods and | Goods and | INR 6,500 | April 2020 — | 20 April | Adjusted
Services Tax Act, | Service Tax | thousand March 2021 | 2021 with  Input
2017, State Goods tax credit on
and Services Tax 20 July
Act, 2017 and 2022
Integrated =~ Goods
and Services Act,
2017
Central Goods and | Goods and | INR 2,983 | April 2020 — | 20 April | Adjusted
Services Tax Act, | Service Tax | thousand March 2021 | 2021 with  Input
2017, State Goods tax credit on
and Services Tax 20 October
Act, 2017 and 2022
Integrated  Goods
and Services Act,
2017

#These amounts have fallen due at various points of time during the current year.

##These amounts have fallen due at various points of time during the previous year and current

year.
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(Continued)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Value Added
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and other statutory dues
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to Forum where
statute dues which the dispute is
amount relates pending
Income Tax Act, | Addition to the | INR 18,128 | FY 2015-16 Commissioner
1961 taxable income | thousand of Income Tax
(Appeals)
(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(i) (@ According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained, other
than INR 244,000 thousand which remain unutilised as at 31 March 2022, The Company has
temporarily parked such unutilised balance in cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2022.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that the Company has not used funds raised on short-
term basis for long-term purposes except for funding operations for the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has taken funds
from following entities on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries (as defined
under the Act) as per details below:

Nature of Name of Amount Name of Relati Nature of Remarks
fund lender involve the onshi | transaction
taken d relevant p for which
subsidiary funds
utilised
Term Banks and | INR Argon Subsid | Onward As
loans, Debenture 1,185,80 | Hotels iaries lending to | explained to
Non- holders 0 Private subsidiaries | us by the
convertibl thousan | Limited, manageme
e d Ascent nt, it is not
debenture Hotels possible to
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(Continued)
Nature of Name of Amount Name of Relati Nature of Remarks
fund lender involve the onshi | transaction
taken d relevant p for which
subsidiary funds
utilised

s (NCD), Private establish a

and Limited and one-to-one

Optionally Barque relationship

convertibl Hotels between

e Private funds

debenture Limited borrowed

s (OCD) and loans
granted to
subsidiaries
by the
Company
during the
current
year.

The Company does not have any joint ventures or associates.

® According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its

subsidiaries as per details below:

Nature Name of lender | Amount of | Name of the | Relations Details of
of loan loan subsidiary hip security
taken pledged
Term DBS Bank India | INR Ascent Hotels | Subsidiar | Pledge of 99%
loan Limited 407,890 Private y equity shares
thousand Limited of Ascent
Hotels Private
Limited
Term Piramal Capital | INR SAMH! JV | Subsidiar | First rank pari-
loan & Housing | 833,000 Business y passu pledge
Finance Limited | thousand* Hotels Private over 100%
Limited equity shares
of SAMHI JV
Business
Hotels Private
Limited

*This loan amount has been obtained and repaid during the current year.

x) ()

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

v

%
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of SAMHI Hotels Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(©

(xi)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(©

(d

(xvii)

(xviii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully convertible debentures during the year. In our opinion, in respect of
private placement of optionally convertible debentures made during the year, the Company has
duly complied with the requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act. The proceeds from
issue of optionally convertible debentures have been used for the purposes for which the funds
were raised.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

As informed to us, with effect from 22 August 2021, the Company does not have requisite
number of independent directors on its Board of Directors to perform functions of Audit
Committee. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company is performing the functions of
the Audit Committee.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-I1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 800,042 thousand in the current financial year
and Rs 411,559 thousand in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of SAMHI Hofels Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

(Xix)

() (a)

We draw attention to Note 49 to the standalone financial statements which explains that the
Company has incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as
at 31 March 2022. Further, the Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets as at
31 March 2022 by Rs. 317,820 thousand.

The note also explains the management's assessment of going concern assumption and
financial impact on account of COVID-19 pandemic situation and its assertion that based on
best estimates made by it, the Company will continue as a going concern i.e. continue its
operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its assets, for the foreseeable
future.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

.
< ”

Vikram Advani

Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 091765
Date: 29 November 2022 ICAI UDIN: 22091765BEJYY13093
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 Auditor's Responsibility

BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial
statements of SAMHI Hotels Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Reauirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SAMH! Hotels
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, except for the effect of the material weakness described below on the achievement of the
objectives of contro! criteria, the company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported below in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022 of the Company, and this material weakness does not affect our opinion on the
standalone financial statements of the Company.

asis or Qualiod Op

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness has been identified as at 31 March 2022:

The Company did not have an appropriate internal control system with regard to subsequent
measurement of Fully Compulsory Convertible Debentures in accordance with Ind AS 109 which has
resulted in restatement of the corresponding figures relating to the year ended 31 March 2021 and as at
1 April 2020 in the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022,

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

| Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibliities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial
statements of SAMHI Hotels Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a materiai effect
on the standalone financial statements.

herent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference fo Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial
statements of SAMHI Hotels Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Vikram Advani

Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 091765
Date: 29 November 2022 ICAI UDIN: 22091765BEJYY13093
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SAMHI Hotels Limited (formerly known as SAMHI Hotels Private Limited}
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indiun Rupees (000), unless otherwise stoted)

Asat Asat As at
Note = 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 I April 2020
{Restated) {Restated)
Note 46 Note 46
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 1,763,375 1.835305 1917752
Right to use assets 3 21,594 35,991 17,612
Intangible assets 4 9,493 12,641 18,278
Financial assets
Investment in subsidiaries 5 14,111,132 9,371,272 8,463,465
Loans 6 1,006,931 2,775,764 3,170416
Other financia assets 7 117,779 76,392 108,767
Income tax assets (net) 8 30,216 18,564 77,514
Other non-current assets 16 1,982 608 1.828
‘Total non-cuirent assets 17,062,502 14,326,537 13,775,632
Current assets
Inventories 1 1,477 2,878 4,478
Financial assets
Trade receivables 12 208,054 92,843 571,267
Cash and cash equivalents 13 482,121 664,217 471,333
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 14 1,761 - 33
Loans 14a 4,260 - 211,561
Other financial assets 15 11,724 14,847 33,945
Other current assets 16 32,826 32,982 42,826
Total current assets 742,223 807,767 1,341,663
TOTAL ASSETS 17,804,725 15,134,304 15,117,295
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 17 76,271 76,271 76,271
Other equity 18 7,294,788 8,103,570 8,973,549
Total equity 7,371,059 8,179,841 9,049,820
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 19 7,754,367 5,464,752 4,174,043
Lease Habilities 20 8,862 21,385 15,378
Other financial liabilities 21 1,584,700 20421 -
Provistons 22 25,694 28,383 24,774
Total non- current liabilities 9,373,623 5535441 4,214,195
Cuirent liabilities
Financial liabilities
Botrowings 23 537,710 1,089,624 1,579,591
Lease liabilities 24 16,352 18,132 7,533
Trade payables 25
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,302 - -
;jl:;t:lmoallxltset::?:;lidesues of creditors other than micro enterprises 234230 163,067 127,975
Other financial liabilities 26 41,872 54,988 60,739
Other current labilities 27 219317 86,089 70,542
Provisions 28 6,260 7,121 6,879
Total current diabilities 1,060,043 1,419,021 1,853,280
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,804,725 15,134,304 15,117,295
The notes from Note 1 to Note 54 fonn an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of (
Chartered Accountants SANHI Hotels Limited (/
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248'§VI\V-100022 O s .
Vilaam Advani © Ashish Jakhanwala Manav Thadani
Partner P Managing Director and CEO Director
Membership No.: 091765 DIN:03304345 DIN:00334993

Place: New Delhi

vaegld N pyember 204

Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram
Date: .Lq N b or ‘Q’O‘D‘Q’ Dute:jlﬂg N oV M LC) DX

v, g A
o Rajaf MERTE Sanjay Jain | ¢
Chidf Financial Officer Senior Director-Corporate Affairs

& Company Secretary
Membership No.: F6137
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

pue )4 Novambur 2042 pxe 29 N o Vembyr L0222



SAMHI Hotels Limited (formerly known as SAMHI Hotels Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts ave in Indian Rupees (000), unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Restated)
Note 46

Income
Revenue from operations 29 623,117 439,896
Other income 30 27,486 310,308
Total income 650,603 750,204
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 31 36,980 23,408
Employee benefits expense 32 246,101 233,028
Other expenses 35 263,433 200,207
Total expenses 546,514 456,643
Profit before finance costs, depreciation, amortisation and tax 104,089 293,561
Finance costs 33 822,973 1,062,722
Depreciation and amortisation expense 34 89,972 101,148

912,945 1,163,870
(Loss) before tax (808,856) (870,309)
Tax expense 9
Current tax - -
Deferred tax - -
Loss for the year (808,856) (870,309)
Other Comprehensive Income
Ttems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
- Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligations 32 72 331
- Income tax relating to items mentioned above - -
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 72 331
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (808,784) (869,978)
Earnings per equity share
Nominal value of equity share is INR 1 [previous year INR 1]
Basic (INR) (10.61) (11.41)
Diluted (INR) (10.61) (1141

The notes from Note | to Note 54 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants SAMHI Hotels Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

f\‘

b
=~

Vikram Advani Ashish Jakhanwala ManaV Thadani
Partner Managing Director and CEO Director
Membership No.: 091765 DIN:03304345 DIN:00534993
Place: New Delhi Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 N pvenbes 201 Date: 24 N ovemn DAL Date: 3 4 Nov
-~ : RS A
_ # = B U T
L™ ajat Mehra Sanjay Jafn'{
Chief Financial Officer Senior Director-Corporate Affairs
& Company Secrelary
Membership No.: F6137
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 24 Nopvembr 2022 Date: 4 Npvembir D22
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SAMHI Hotels Limited (formerly known as SAMHI Hotels Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stuted)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

(Restated)
Note 46
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax {808,856) (870,309)
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 89,972 101,148
Finance costs 865,647 571,769
Interest income (26,874) (302,394)
Interest expense on Fully Compulsory Convertible Debentures (FCCDs) (42,674) 484,953
Loss allowance 160 -
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 603 -
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 3414 -
Unwinding of discount on security deposit (402) (463)
Gain on modification of leased assets - (3,169)
Liabilities no longer required written back - (564)
(Gain)/ Loss on fair valuation of derivative component of FCCDs 3,302 (2,687)
Government grant (46) 1,552
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 84,246 (14,164)
Decrease in inventories 1,401 1,601
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (115,371) 484,986
(Increase) / decrease in loans (11,463) (2,492)
Decrease in other financial assets 2,976 16,799
(Increase) / decrease in other assets (1,218) 11,064
Increase in loans {4,260) -
Increase in trade payables 57,250 35,092
Increase in other liabilities 133,228 15,547
Increase / (decrease) in provisions (3,495) 4,206
Increase in other financial liabilities (13,408) 11,182
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations 129,886 563,821
Income taxes (paid) / refunded - net (10,195) 61,844
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities 119,691 625,665
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3,902 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (4.710) (654)
Loan provided to subsidiaries (1,185,800) (953,383)
Loan repayment by subsidiaries 35,000 767,080
Bank deposits matured 675,018 (80,645)
Bank deposits made (723,700) 131,536
Interest received 9,488 9,956
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities (1,190,802) (126,109)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from non-~current borrowings 2,674,333 1,978,436
Repayment of non-cwrent borrowings (1,633,213) (1,712,207)
Proceeds from Non convertible debentures (unsecured) 225,000 -
Proceeds from Optionally convertible debentures (unsecured) 78,000 -
Advance received from subsidiary 848,500 -
Advance given to subsidiary (850,000) -
Lease paynients (18,132) (13,792)
Finance costs paid (724,680) (543,134)
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) current borrowings (net) 289,207 (16,174)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 889,016 (306,872)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (182,096) 192,684
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 664,217 471,533
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 482,121 664,217
Asat Asat
Notes to standalone statement of Cash Flows 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 262 262
Balances with banks
- on current accounts 481,859 663,955
482,121 664,217




SAMHI Hotels Limited (farmerly known as SAMHI Hotels Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

it Movement in borrowings

As on 1 April 2021

Changes from financing cash flaws
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowings

Proceeds from Non convertible debentures (unsecured)
Proceeds from Optionally convertibie debentures (unsecured)

Advance received from subsidiary
Advance given to subsidiary

Proceeds from/(Repayment of) current borrowings (net)

Finance costs paid

Other non cash changes
Finance cost expense
Ason 31 March 2022

Ason 1 April 2020 (Restated)
Changes from financing cash flows

Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowings

Proceeds from / (repayment of) current borrowings - net

Finance cost paid

Other non cash changes
Finance cost expense
As on 31 March 2021

ili. For movement in lease liabilities, Refer Note 47

Total

6,554,375

2,674,333
(1,633,213)
225,000
78,000
848,500
(850,000)
289,207
(724,680)

830,629

8,292,151

6,081,917

1,978,435
(1,712,207)
(16,174)
(543,134)

765,539

6,554,375

iv, The Standalone Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

The notes from Note 1 to Note 54 form an integral part of these

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

S
b /// +
Vikram Adva M/"' “
Partner <

Membership No.: 091765

Place; New Delhi

Date: L4 () pVEIMber 20A

dalone financial stat ts.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

SAMHI Hotels Limited

Ashish Jakhanwala
Managing Director and CEO
DIN:03304345

Place: Gurugram

Date: 4 Nov

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram

Date: 2.4 Novamb pr ADAL

/

Manav Thadani
Director
DIN:00534993

Place: Gurugram
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Senior Director-Corporale Affairs
& Company Secretary
Membership No.: F6137

Place: Gurugram

Date: ,;L4 MD

Vembir 2022




SAMHI Hotels Limited (formerly known as SAMHI Hotels Private Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate information

SAMHI Hotels Limited (formetly known as SAMHI Hotels Private Limited) (‘the Company’) is a
Company domiciled in India. The Company was incorporated in India on 28 December 2010 as per the
provisions of Indian Companies Act and is limited by shares.

The Company is a hotel development and investment company with focus on operating internationally
branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent.

Presently, the Company has two operational hotels under it i.e., Fairfield by Marriott - Bengaluru and
Fairfield Sriperumbudur - Chennai.

1.2 Basis of preparation

A. Statement of Compliance
These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act. Also refer Note 49 for going
concern basis of accounting used by the management.
The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 29
November 2022,

B. Functional and presentation currency
These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest thousands, unless otherwise

indicated.

C. Basis of Measurement
The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following

items:

Items Measurement Basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair Value
(including derivatives instruments)

D. Significant accounting judgments and estimates.

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about
the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may require material adjustment to the carrying
value of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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i)

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The following are the significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone
financial statements:

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

Leases

Critical judgements in determining the lease period.

Ind AS 116 required lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company
makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and there by assesses whether it
is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating
the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken
over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset
to the Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of
suitable alternatives. The lease term in the future possible periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term
reflects the current economic circumstances,

Critical judgements in determining the discount rate:
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated
or for the portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Useful lives, recoverable amounts and impairment of property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and other intangible
assets are based on estimates and assumptions regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash
flows, obsolescence, demand, competition, and known technological advances. The Company reviews the
useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets at the
end of each reporting date.

Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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v)

vi)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the standalone balance sheet in respect of which quoted
prices in active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments. Also, refer note 40 for further disclosures.

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unused tax losses, deductible temporary differences and MAT credit available, to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating
cycle.

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All
other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are classified
as non-current assets and liabilities.
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1)

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months
for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework
with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team of the Company has overall responsibility
for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to
the Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information
is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

« Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

« Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

« Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 40.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing costs
if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.




SAMHI Hotels Limited (formerly known as SAMHI Hotels Private Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ("000), unless otherwise stated)

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only
ifit is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or
loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates). Further, leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of lease term and their useful lives. The assets® residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (upto) the date on which the
asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

Asset Category* Useful Life (years) Useful life as per
Schedule I1 to the
Companies Act, 2013
Building 15-60 60
Computers and accessories 3-6 . 3-6
Plant and machinery 3-30 15
Furniture and fixtures 5-8 10
Vehicles 8 8
Office equipment 3-5 5

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined that
the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.
Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different from the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis for assets purchased/sold during the year.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment are reviewed
by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.
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2) Intangible assets

3)

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition,
an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if
any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific
asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Intangible assets of the Company represents computer software and are amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life (at present three to ten years) or the tenure of the respective software
license, whichever is lower. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous
estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally its transaction
price (that is, the fair value of the consideration given or received). However, if there is a difference between
the transaction price and the fair value of financial instruments whose fair value is based on a quoted price
in an active market or a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the Company
recognizes the difference as a gain or loss at inception (‘day 1 gain or loss’). In all other cases, the entire
day 1 gain or loss is defetred and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the life of the
transaction until the transaction matures or is closed out.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortized cost;

- FVOCI — debt investment;

- FVOCI — equity investment; or
- FVTPL
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Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL.

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and -

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management, for instance the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio, frequency, volume and timing
of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales
activity.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
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- prepayment and extension features;
- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
assets at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
at amortized cost | effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income

at FVOCI under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
' and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.
Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
investments recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
at FVOCI a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition
Financial assets
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the

Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets
are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expite.
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iv.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Financial guarantee

Vi,

Vii.

Financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Corporate guarantees provided to Banks on behalf of and in respect of loans obtained by the subsidiary are

in the nature of financial guarantees. Such guarantees are initially measured at fair value and subsequently
at the higher of:

- the expected credit loss allowance determined in accordance with Ind AS 109; and

- the amount recognised initially less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance
with Ind AS.

Interest firee loans

The Company has given interest free loans to its subsidiary companies. Such interest free loans are
measured at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash
flows and discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such loans.
The difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans have been recognised as a
deemed investment in the subsidiary. The loan component is subsequently measured at amortized costs and
interest income is recognised using effective interest rate method.

The Company has obtained interest free loans from its subsidiary company. Such interest free loans are
measured at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash
flows and discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such loans.
The difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans has been recognised as income
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The loan component is subsequently measured at amortized costs and
interest expense is recognised using effective interest rate method.

Concessional overdraft facility

The Company has pledged fixed deposits with banks for overdraft facility availed by its subsidiaries. The
overdraft facility availed by subsidiaries carries an interest rate lower than the market rate. Difference
between interest charged by bank and market rate is recognised as deemed investment in subsidiary with
corresponding credit to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.
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viii. Modification of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets:

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified
asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to
cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognized, and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

ix. Fully Compulsorily convertible debentures

The Company has issued fully compulsorily convertible debentures (FCCDs). As per the terms of debenture
agreement, each debenture will be converted into equity shares based on an agreed conversion formula
(fixed to variable conversion). Accordingly, the whole amount has been treated as financial liability in
books and carried at amortized cost.

x. Non-convertible debentures

xi.

The Company has issued non-convertible debentures (NCDs). As per the terms of debenture agreement,
each debenture will be redeemed within 36 months from the deemed date of allotment. Accordingly, the
same amount has been treated as financial liability in books and carried at amortized cost.

Embedded Derivative

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated
from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would
meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
fair value through profit or loss category.

The Company has identified the redemption right as equity component of convertible PIK obligation of
Non-convertible debentures issued by its subsidiaries. As the risks associated with the underlying variable
are not closely related to the host instrument, the equity component has been separately accounted for as
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deemed investments. The equity component has been fair valued through profit or loss at each balance sheet
date.

4) Impairment

A. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

-the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

-it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

-the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for
the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
. other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
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3)

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or
- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability -weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analyzed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an
asset (or cash generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories which comprises stock of food and beverages (including liquor) is carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventory to their present location and condition. In determining the cost, first in first out
(“FIFO”) method is used. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to make the sale.
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6)

7)

8)

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The Company records a provision for site restoration costs to be incurred for the restoration of leasehold
land at the end of the lease period. The provision is measured at the present value of the best estimate of
the expected costs to settle the obligation and recognised as part of the cost of property, plant and equipment.
The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes
in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the costs of the
asset and site restoration obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Provisions
are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by the Company
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition and/or
construction of those tangible fixed assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use are capitalised. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the period during
which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than temporary interruption. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

9) Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-gratia.
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.
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(b) Share based payment transactions

(c)

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees under the
Employee Stock Option Scheme is recognised as an employee stock option expense, with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards, The
amount recognised as an expense is based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related
service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately
recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market
vesting conditions at the vesting date. The increase in equity recognised in connection with a share based
payment transaction is presented in "Employee stock option outstanding account”, as a separate component
in equity. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the
share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between
expected and actual outcomes.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee State Insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee state
insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the Profit or loss during the
period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution already paid is less than the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess
is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market yields on
government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to the terms of
related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in standalone other comprehensive income and
are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past
service cost.




SAMHI Hotels Limited (formerly known as SAMHI Hotels Private Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

(d) Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it
in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months
after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records
an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

10) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Revenue from hotel operations

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and recreation services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation and other services relating to hotel
operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale of food and beverages.

Other services

Other services comprises amount billed to subsidiary companies on account of allocation of common cost
incurred during the year. The income is recognised when services are rendered as per the terms of the
contract and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection of the consideration.

11) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment
is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortized cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability. However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset. If the asset is
no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
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12) Accounting for Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit or
loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or loss on
a net basis.

13) Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of - current tax reflects
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any,
related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT”) for the year is charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

— temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
transaction; and

~ temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the Company is able to
control the timings of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
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realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit entitlement under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is
recognised as a deferred tax asset when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it in the
form of adjustment of future income tax liability, will flow to the Company and the asset can be measured
reliably, MAT credit entitlement is set off to the extent allowed in the year in which the Company becomes
liable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each reporting
date and is recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. MAT credit entitlement has been presented as deferred tax asset in Balance Sheet.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the probability of recognition of MAT credit
entitlement,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets and Company intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or such tax
assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

14) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). The Company’s Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM")

Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources to the
segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages
in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components.

15) Leases
Company as a Lessee
On inception of a contract, the Company (as a lessee) assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is, or
contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company
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has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii)
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases,
the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices and applies the
lease accounting model only to lease components.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
any asset restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives received. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-
measurement of lease liabilities. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
assets or renewal of the leases at the end of the lease term, recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated to
a residual value over the shorter of their estimated useful life or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed” payments) and variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. ‘In-substance fixed’
payments are payments that may, in form, contain variability but that, in substance, are unavoidable. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Company is not reasonably certain
that it will exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include the cost of a purchase option if the
Company is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and any
lease modification.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases which
guarantee a minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed amount is considered to be an ‘in-
substance fixed’ lease payment and included in the initial calculation of the lease liability. Payments which
are ‘in-substance fixed’ are charged against the lease liability.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.
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If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

16) Karnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares.
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti - dilutive.

17) Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost, less any impairment in the value of investment, in these separate
financial statements.

18) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

19) Government Grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the
Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received.

Export Promotion Capital Goods scheme

The grant or subsidy received to compensate the import cost of assets, subject to an export obligation is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in ratio of fulfilment of associated export obligations.

Service Exporis from India scheme (SEIS)

The scheme entitles the Company to receive SEIS licenses basis the annual earnings in foreign currency.
These licenses can be utilized by the Company or sold in the market. The grant is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis at realizable value.

20) Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and liabilities.
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5 [Investments in subsidiaries Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade investments, unquoted

a) Investinents in equity shares (At cost)

Barque Hotels Private Limited 2,039,887 1,084,124
38,375,080 (3! March 2021 - 30,046,105) equity shares of INR 10 cach

Out of the above equity shares 38,375,079 (31 March 2021 - 15,323,514) equity shares of INR [0 each of Barque

Hotels Private Limited have been pledged in respect of loan taken by Barque Hotels Private Limited.

SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited 615997 615,997
2,164,936 (31 March 2021 - 2,164,936) Class A equity shares of INR 10 each
10 (31 March 2021 - 10) Class B Equity shares of INR 10 each

CASPIA Hotels Private Limited 114,848 114,848
18,000,000 (31 March 2021 - 18,000,000) equity Shares of INR 10 each

Out of the above equity shares, 5,400,000 (31 March 2021 - 5,400,000) cquity shares of INR 10 cach have been

pledged in respect of loan taken by CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

SAMH! Hotels (Gurgaon) Private Limited 721323 721,323
708,760 (31 March 2021 - 708,760) cquity Shares of INR 10 each

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited 1,617,049 1,617,049
124,780,000 (31 March 2021 - 124,780,000) equity Shares of INR 16 each

Out of the above equity shares, 124,779,999 (31 March 2021 - 124,779.999) equity shares of INR 10 each have

been pledsed in respect of foan taken by SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Linited

Ascent Hotels Private Limited 1,196,000 1,196,000
127,801,486 (31 March 2021 - 127.801,486) equity Shares of INR 10 each

Out of the above equity share, 127,801,485 (31 March 2021 - 127,801,485) equity shares of INR 10 each have

been pledged in respect of loan taken by Ascent Hotels Private Limited.

Argon Hotels Private Limited 20,000 20,000
7,770,492 (31 March 2021 - 7,770,492) equity Shares of INR 10 cach

Out of the above equity shares, 2,331,148 (31 March 2021 - 2,331,148) equity shares of INR 10 each have been

pledged in respect of loan taken by Argon Hotels Private Limited

b) Investments in Preference shares (At cast)

SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited 1,260,000 1,260,000
6,300,000 (31 March 2021 - 6,300,000) 0.001% Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each

¢) Deemed investrment in subsidiary (At cost)

Interest free laans extended to:*

SAMHI Hotels (Gurgaon) Private Limited 359,542 359,542
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited 2,632,423 2,667,423
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited 555.488 355,488
Barque Hotels Private Limited . 2,431,018 2,196,478
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited 41,959 37,823
Ascent Hotels Private Limited 315,252 315,252
Argon Hotels Private Limited 2,731,474 -

Overdraft facilities al concessional rate:
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited 4,896 4,896
Barque Hotels Private Limited 18,690 18,690

Convertible PIK obligation:
Barque Hotels Private Limited ** 721,400 -
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited ** 863,300 -

d} Investments in debentures

Barque Hotels Private Limited - 935,763
Nil (31 March 2021 - 8,328,975) 0% unsecured fully pulsorily convertible deb (“FCCDs™) of INR (00
each
Less: Impairment of investments in equity shares (4,169,424) (4,169,424
14,111,132 9,571,272
A te amount of unquoted i 14,111,132 9,571,272
* D of loans to idiaries
Total proceeds 8,067.263 6,916,463
Less: Deemed investment (9.087.166) {6.132,006}
{1,019,903) 784,457
Add: Gain on carly payment of loan by subsidiares 786,938 786,938
Less: Loss on modification of financial assets (214,119 (214,119)
Add: Deemed investment on loan received from subsidiary 41,939 37,823
Add: Interest income accretion (net of TDS) 1.353.274 1,336,376
Closing balance of loan component (including accrued interest) 948,149 2,731,475

*+ Equity component of Convertible PIK obligation of Non Convertible debentures issued by Barque Hotels Private Limited amounting to INR 721,400 and Nen Convertible
debentures issued by S usiness Hotels Private Limited amounting to INR 863.300,
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6 Non-current financial assets - Loans

(Unsecured considered good)

To related parties
Loans to subsidiaries

As at
31 Mairch 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Ascent Hotels Private Limited* 820,478 -

Argon Hotels Private Limited** 127,669 2,731,474

Other loans

Loan to Key Management Person# 47,321 44,290

Loan to employees 11,463 -
1,006,931 2,775,764

*During the current year, loan has been given to Ascent Hotels Private Limited on the following terms:-

- Loan is given for working capital purpose
- Interest rate 13% p.a. (31 March 2021 Nil)
- Repayable after 5 years from the date of first disbursement.

** Argon Hotels Private Limited - Loan is repayable on demand as per mutual agreement and carried an interest rate @ 9.25% p.a, in the current year loan amounting to INR
2,731,474 which was carrying an interest rate of 12% p.a. was converted at following tenms.

- Loan to be considered as perpetaal debt given for working capital & project expenses purpose

- Nil rate of interest
- Repayable at the option of the borrower

Accordingly the loan to Argon Hotels Private Limited outstanding at the end of the previous year has been reclassified to deemed investment,

# Represent loan given to Managing Director of the Company on 29 March 2014 for a period of 3 years at an interest rate of 14.75% per annum on principal loan amount. The
initial loan period has been extended till 31 March 2024. Also, includes interest free loan amounting to INR 2,500 to Mr. Rajat Mehra (Chief Financial Officer).

# Includes interest accrued of INR 24,272 (31 March 2021 - INR 21,241)
*Includes interest accrued of INR 11,978 (31 March 2021 - INR Nil)
**includes accrued interest of INR 4,919 (31 March 2021 - INR 972,501)

Loans and_advances to specified person

y % to total | &
Type of Borrawer 31 March 2022 | 7 “;‘;:‘:l'li‘;:“ &1 31 Mareh 2021 & “; o
KMPs 47,321 5% 44,290 2%
Ascent Hotels Private Limited 820,478 81% - 0%
Argon Hotels Private Limited 127,669 13% 2,731,474 98%
7 Non-current financial assets - Others As at As at

(Unsecured considered good)

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Bank deposits with maturity more than 12 months from the reporting date* # 101,378 57,285
Derivative component of IFC FCCDs** - 3,302
Security deposits 16,401 15,805

117,779 76,392

* Includes bank deposits under lien amounting to INR 95,104 (31 March 2021 - INR 51,372)

“*The Company has issued 1,260,000 fully compulsorily convertible debentures (FCCDs) to International Financial Corporation (IFC). As per the terms of FCCDs, the
conversion of FCCDs into equity shares is based on the Company achieving certain IRR % in foreign currency (USD) terms. The Company has identified the foreign currency
IRR as an embedded derivative. As the risks associated with the underlying variable are not closely related to the host instrument, the embedded derivative has been separately
accounted for from the FCCDs, The embedded derivative has been fair valued through profit or loss at each balance sheet date. Refer Note 40 for financial instruments
disclosure (including fair value disclosure). Due to modification in terms of the agreement with IFC, the derivative has been charged off to the statement of profit and loss.

# including interest accrued on bank deposits of INR 3,070 (31 March 2021 - INR 5,913)

8 Income tax assets (net)

Tax deducted at source

As at
31 March 2022

30,216

Asat
31 March 2021

18,564

30,216

18,564
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9 Income tax
A: The major compunents of income tas expense / {income) are
Recognised in profit or loss

Current tax
Deferred tax

For the year ended
31 March 2022

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate (tax expense and the accounting profit multiplicd by Company's domestic tax ratc)

For the year ended
31 March 2021
(Restated)

Far the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Restated)
Note 46
Tax rate Amount Tax rate Aniount
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (808,856) (870,309)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 2517 (203,573) 25.17 (219,039)
Non-recognition of temporary differences (26.53) 214,724 0.00 -
Non-deductible differences 047y 3,778 (1.12) 9,768
Change in tax rate - - (24.10) 209,714
Others 1.85 (14,929 0.03 41
Effective tax rate - - - -
Asat As at
C. Deferred tax assets / Habilities 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Restated)
Note 46

Deferred tax assets
Business losses and unabsorbed depreciation 522735 155,089
Impairment in value of investments 1,049,360 1,049,360
Loss allowance for doubtful debts 318 778
Provision for employee benefits 17,387 20,021
Disaflowance u/s 43B of the Income-tax Act, 1961 15,501 116,105
Others 1,225 492
Sthare options outstanding 19,24 19,274

1,630,500 1,355,119
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, Right of use assets and Intangible assets 168,402 164,643
Loan from subsidiary 169,913 180,453
Derivative companent of FCCDs - 831
Fully C Isory C: ible Deb 122,387 38,405
Long Term Borrowings 4,308 -

465,010 404,332
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) 1,165,490 950,787
As at year end, the Company has signifi bsorbed depreciation and carry forward business losses as per Income Tax Act, 1961. In view af absence of reasonable certainty of sufficient future taxable profits, deferred tax assets
has been recognized to the extent of deferred tax liabilities only.
D. Movement in temporary differences
31 March 2022 -
Particulars Balance as at Movement during Balance as at
April 1, 2021 2021-22 31 March 2022

Property, plant and equipment, Right of use assets and Intangible assets (164,643) (3,759) (168,402)
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 155,089 367,646 322,735
Impairment in valug of investments 1,049,360 - 1,049,360
Share options outstanding 19,274 - 19,274
Loss allowance for doubtful debts 778] 40] 818
Provision for employee benefits 20,021 (2,434); 17,587
Loan from subsidiary (180,433) 10,540 {169,913)
Interest accrued but not due 110,105 (90,604) 19,501
Derivalive of FCCDs (831) 831 -
Fully Compulsory Convertible Debentures (38403) (63,982) (122,387)
Others 492 733 1,225
Long Term Borrowings - {4,308) (4,308)
Total 950,787 214,703 1,165,490
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31 March 2021

Particulars Balance as at Movement during Balance as at
1 Aprit 2020 2020-21 31 March 2021
Property. plant and equipment, Right of use assets and Intangible assets (160,289} (4.354) {164,643)
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 106,152] 48,937 155,089
Impairment in vajue of investments 1,049,360 - 1,049,360
Share options outstanding 19,274 - 19274
Loss allowance for doubtful debts 919 (14 778
Provisioa for employee benefits 18,093 1,928 20,021
Loan from subsidiary {199,696) 19,243 (180,453)
|Interest accrued but not dus 44,120 63,985 110,103
Derivative component of FCCDs (624 (207) 831
Fully Compalsory Convertible Debentures (136,873)| 78,473 {58,405)
Others 642! (150) 492
Total 741,073 209,714 950,787
E. Tax losses carvied forward
Tax losses far which no deferred tax asset was recognised with expiry date are as follows:
As at
31 March 2022
Amount Expiry Date
(Financial Year)
Business loss 113,923 2024-25
Business loss 13,650 2027-28
Business loss 233,869 2028-29
Business loss 1,217,434 2029-30
Unabsorbed depreciation 498,106 Never expire
As at
31 March 2028
Amount Expiry Date
(Financial Year)
Business loss 1,779 2021-22
Business loss 113923 2024-23
Business loss 13,650 2027-28
Business loss 233,869 2028-29
Unabsorbed depreciation 407,403 Never expire
10 Other non-current assets Asal Asat

(Unsecured, considered goad)

Prepaid expenses
Capital advances

31 March 2022

1,549
433
1,982

31 March 2021

175
433

608
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11 Inventories
(valued at the lower of cost or nel realisable value)

Beverages

12 Current financial assets - Trade receivables

As at
31 March 2022

1477

As at
31 March 2021

2878

1477

2,878

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Unsecured, considered good 208,054 92843
Unsecured, credit impaired 3.250 3,090
211,304 95,933
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debis (3.250) (3.090)
208,054 92,843
a) The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowancas related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 40,
Trade receivable ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2022
O ling for following periads from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than 6 months | 6 menths- I year | 1-2years | 2-3years | More than 3 years Total
Undisputed Trade receivables ~ idered good 193,286 8,668 2,909 2,194 997 208,054
Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - 1,138 362 1,750 3,250
As at 31 March 2021
[o] ding for following periods from duc date of payment
Particulars
Less than 6 months | 6 months - { year | 1 -2 years 2-3years | More than 3 years Total
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 84,335 594 3,015 1,326 1,573 92,843
Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - 8 1211 298 1,573 3,090




SAMHI Hotels Limited (formerly known as SAMHI Hotels Private Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(A1l amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

13

14

14a

15

16

Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

- on current accounts 481,859 663,955

Cash on hand 262 262
482,121 664,217

Current financial assets - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above As at As at

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months*
* includes interest accrued on bank deposits INR 15 (31 March 2021 - INR Nii )
Current financial assets - Loan

(Unsecured, considered good)

Loan to employees

Current financial assets - Others
(Unsecured, considered good)

31 March 2022

1,761

31 March 2021

1,761

As at
31 March 2022

4,260

As at
31 March 2021

4,260

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Unbilled revenue** 7,003 9,161
Government grant receivable # - 2,388
Other receivables 4,721 3,298

11,724 14,847

% Net of advance from customers of INR 3,597 (31 March, 2021 - INR 5,703)

# The Company is availing export incentive under Service Exports from India Scheme (SEIS). Under the scheme, the Company is entitled to receive
SEIS licenses based on the annual earnings in foreign currency. These licenses can be utilized by the Company or sold in the market. During the year, the
Company has recognised income of INR 46 (31 March 2021 — INR 39) and recoverable balance of INR Nil (31 March 2021 — INR 2,388 ) as at the
balance sheet date. During the current year, the Company has written off government grant of INR Nil (31 March 2021-INR 1,591)

Other current assets As at

31 March 2022

As at

(Unsecured, considered good) 31 March 2021

Staff advance 108 -
Balance with statutory authorities 7,480 25,172
Advance to suppliers 5,229 1,613
Prepaid expenses™ 20,009 6,197
32,826 32,982

*Includes current portion of non-current prepaid expenses amounting to INR 552 (31 March 2021-INR 151)
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t7  Equity share capital Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of shares Antount Number of shares Amaunt
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of INR | each 130,000,000 130,000 130,000,000 130,000
130,000,000 130,000 130,000,800 136,000
Issued, subscribed and fully patd up
Equity shares of INR 1 each 16,270,704 76,271 16,270,704 76271
76,270,704 76,271 76,270,704 76,271
1) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 76,270,704 76,271 16,270,704 76,271
At the end of the year 76,270,704 76,271 76,270,704 76,271

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has ouly one

class of equity shares having the par value of INR 1 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as and when

declared. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assels of the Company, after distribution of all preferentia} amounts. The distribution will be in

proportion to the number of ¢quity shases held by the sharcholders.

¢} Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% equity shares
As at
31 March 2022
Number of shares

Name of shareholder
Equity shares

Blue Chandra Ple. Limited
GTI Capital Alpha Private Limited
Goldman Sachs Investment Holding (Asia) Ltd.

37,641,140
13,747,395
22,023,692

d) Shares reserved for issue under options
Refer note 45 for detaifs of shares issued Employee Stock Option Plan of the Company.

% of halding

49.35%
18.02%
2888%

Asat
31 March 2021
Number of shares % of holding

€) No shares have been allotted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares and bought back during the pertod of five years immediately preceding the Balanee Sheet date.

£) Refer note 19 (¢) for shares reserved and conversion teans in respect of Fully Compulsory Convertible Debentures (FCCD) beld by International Finance Corporation,

) Promoter shareholding as on 31 March 2022 is Nif (31 March 2021 : Niby

18 Other equity

Retained eamings
Share options cutstanding account
Securities premium

a) Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Changes dug to prior period corrections (refer note 46)
Loss for the year

Transfer from other comprehensive income
Balance at the year end

b) Share options outstanding account

Batance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the year end

37,641,140 49.35%
13,747,395 18.02%
22,023,692 28.88%
Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Restated)
(3,788,638) (2,979,904)
76,581 76,581
11,006.894 11,006.894
7,294,787 8,103,571
Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Restated)
{2.979.904) (2.653.783)
- 543,857
(808,856) (870,309)
” 331
{3,788,688) 2,979,904
Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 202¢

76,381 16,581

76,581 76,581

The Company has established equity setted shared based payment plan for certain categories of employees of the Company. Refer note 43 for further details on this plan.

<) Securities premium account
Balanee at the beginning of the year
Balance at the year end

Securities premium is used to record the premiunt received on issue of shares. It is utilised in aocordane of the C;

with the p

d) Other comprehensive income - Remeasurements of defined benefit liability / asset

Balance at the beginuing of the year
Remeasurements gain/(loss) - net of tax
Transferred to retained carmings
Balance at the year end

ed benetit Hability / asset comprises actuarial gains and losses.

Act 2013,

Asat
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

11,006,894 11,006.894
11,006,894 11,006,894
Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

72 331
an 331)
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19 Non-current financial liabilities - Borrowings

Asat
31 March 2022

As at
31 Mavrch 2021

Term loan from banks (secured) [refer (a) below] ~ 3,080,668 2,380,187
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings * (228,281) {45,925)
2,852,387 2,334,262
Term loans from institution (secured) [refer (b) below]** 200,074 1,032,827
Less: Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (74) -
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings * (7,500) (1.032,827)
192,500 R
Vehicle loans (secured) [refer {c) below] 3,953 8,218
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings * (3,953) (4,264)
- 3,954
Loan from subsidiary [refer (d) below] 1,317,892 345,205
4,362,779 2,683,420

Fully Compulsory Convertible Debentures (unsecured) {refer (¢) below and note 46]
1,260,000 (31 March 2021 - 1,260,000) 8.5 % Fully Compulsory Convertible Debentures (FCCD) of INR 1,880,843 1,923,518
1,000 each held by Int: | Finance Corporati

Non Convertible Debentures (unsecured) {refer {g) below] 1,417,385 857,814
1,095 (31 March 2021 - 870), 35.7% Non Convertible Debenture of Rs 1,000,000 each

Optionally Converlible Debentures (unsecured) [refer (h) below]
780 (31 March 2021 - Nil), Optional Convertible Debenture of Rs 100,000 each

93,360 -

7,754,367 5,464,752

A includes interest on secured loan of INR 77.482 as Company has taken moratorium with reference to RBI circular DOR No.BP.BC 47/21.04.048/2019-20 dated 27 March 2020
and DORNo.BP.BC.71/21.04.048/2019-20 dated 23 May 2020 for the period I March 2020 to 31 August 2020. Interest capilalised will be payable in proportion to ratio of the
ariginal principal repayments basis or will be paid along with the last instaflment of loan basis comrespondence from the respective bank/financial institution.

*Amount disclosed under "current financial liabilities- borrowings"
*+* including interest accrued but not due on term loan from financial institution amounting to INR 74 (31 March 2621 - INR 284,870)

{a) Term loans taken from banks:

Sanction amounts

Secured loan from Standard Chartered Bank - INR 310,000 (31 March 2021 - INR 310,000}

Secured loan from Indusind Bank - INR 1,590,000 (31 March 2021 - INR 1,590,000)

Secured working capital term loan from Indusind Bank - INR 976,800 (31 March 2021 - INR 488,400)
Secured term loan from DBS Bank Limited- INR 249,390 (31 March 2021 - INR Nil)

Secured working capital term Loan from Standard Chartered Bank

Working capital term loan fram bank is secured by;

1) Second charge on five Hotel properties of Argon Hotels Private Limited (subsidiary)

2) Second charge/hypothecation on, moveable fixed assets of above five hotel properties.

3) Second charge on present and future receivables of above five Hotel properties owned or taken on leases by the Subsidiary.

It carries an interest rate of 9.25% p.a. (31 March 2021 - 9.25% p.a.). The loan is repayable in 48 monthly instaliments after 12 months from first disbursement date.

Terms of Secured loan from IndusInd Bank

Term loan from bank is secured by:

1.First charge on all immovable fixed assets of Fairfield by Marriott Bengalun: Rajajinagar and Fairfield by Marriott. Sriperumbudur (Hotels).

2 First charge on all movable fixed assets of the above Hotels, both present and future.

3.Security cover of 1.25x (considering value of movable and immovable fixed assets) during the entire tenor of facilities.

4.First charge on all current assets of the above Hotels both present and future,

5.First charge on all the cash flows of the above Hotels both present and future.

6.Cross collateralization of all assets and cash flows of the above hotels.

Tt carries an interest rate of MCLR plus 0.2% ie. 10.05% p.a (31 March 2021 - 10.05% p.a) as at year end. The loan is repayable in 56 structured quarterly instaliments
ing from 30 September 2020 till 31 March 2034, Further, the Company shall maintain DSRA equivalent to one quarter principal and interest repayment due in the form

of fixed deposit duly lien marked in favor of the bank.

Secured working capital term loan from Indusind Bank

Term loan from bank is secured by:

1.Second chiargs on alt immovable fixed assets of Fairfield by Mamiott Bengaturu Rajajinagar and Fairfield by Marriott, Sriperumbudur (Hotels).
2.Second charge on all movable fixed assets of the above Hotels, both present and future.

3,8econd charge on all current assets of the above Hotels both present and future.

4.Second charge on all the cash flows of the above Holels both present and future.

Tranche 1 During the year ended 31 March 2021, the company had obtained working capital term loan amousiting to INR 488,400 (under ECLGS sclenk) "Tranche 1*
Tt carries an interest rate of 9.25% p.a. (March 2021 - 9.23% pa.). The loan is repayable in 48 monthly installments after 12 months from first disbursement date Le. 7th February 2021, However, there is
no moratorium for interest. i shall be payable at monthly intervals,

Tranche 2 During the year cuded 31 March 2022, the company Iad obtained working capital term loan amounting to INR 488,400 (under ECLGS schiene) “Tranche 2°
1t carries an interest rate of 9.25% p.a. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly instathments after 24 nwnths from first disbursement date i.e. 30 September 2021. However, there is no nwratorium for interest.
1t shatl be payable at monthly intervals.
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Secured term loan from DBS Bank Limited

Term loan from bank is secured by:

I.Second charge on all immovable fixed assets of the Ascent Hotels Private Limited ("Subsidiary”) in the Project (including the hotel property and land) both present and future,

2.Second charge on all movable fixed assets of the Subsidiary in the Project, both present and future.

3.Second charge on all current assets of the Subsidiary in the Project, both present and future.

4.Charge by way of pledge over shares of the subsidiary.

The Company has obtained term loan facility of INR 249,390 carries an interest rate of 11% p.a. as at year end. The loan is repayable as bullet payment after 24 months from first disbursement
date.

(b) Loan frem financial institutions

The Company has obtained term loan facility of INR 750,000 (31 March 2021 - INR 750,000) for three years.

The interest rate (accrual) for term loan from Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited during the current year is Piramal Prime Lending Rate (PPLR) less facility spread i.e. 15% p.a. as at
31 March 2022. Further in the previous year interest rate on term loan from PHL Fininvest Private Limited was Piramal Prime Lending Rate (PPLR) less facility spread i.e. 15.80% p.a. as at 31
March 2021

The interest is compounded monthly and payable quarterly and principal outstanding is repayable in 8 installments starting from July 2022.
Loans from Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited is secured by way of:
(i) First ranking pari passu charge by way of mortgage and hypothecation of cash flows and mortgage over Hyderabad Asset in SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited ("Subsidiary")

(i) First ranking pari passu charge, undertaking cum guarantee for utilization of any surplus from Ascent Hotels Private Limited (Pune Asset) towards repaynent of Facility Amount.

(iii) First ranking pari passu charge, over Bangalore Project Receivables, Current Account and Project Escrow Account
(iv) First ranking pari passu charge, over Hyderabad Project receivables, Current Account and Project Escrow Account
(v) Non-disposal undertaking from promoter for 100% shares of subsidiary.

(¢) Terms of vehicle loans:
Tt cansists of vehicle loans from BMW Financial Services Private Limited repayable in 24-36 monthly installments carrying interest rate of 9.70% p.a.(March 2021 - 9.70% p.a.). It is secured
by way of hypothecation against the respective vehicle.

{d) Terms of loan from subsidiary:

Interest free loan
As on 31 March 2022, the company has obtained interest free loan from SAMHI IV Business Hotels Private Limited ("subsidiary company") amounting to INR 384,721 (31 March 2021 - INR
345,205) which is repayable at any date after 31 December 2030 as per mutual consent of the Company and the subsidiary company. The loan is obtained in Indian Rupees. These loans were

btained for ing project exp and busi purpose

q

Interest bearing loan

As on 31 March 2022, the company has obtained interest bearing loan from SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited (“subsidiary ") ing to INR 933,162 (31 March 202! -
INR Nil) including accrued interest of INR 29,618 (31 March 2021 - INR Nil) which is repayable after 3 years from the date of first dlsbursement i.e. 21 January 2022.The loan is obtained at
interest rate of 19.50% p.a. simple interest. The loan is denominated in Indian Rupees. These loans were obtained from subsidiary y for ting project exp and busi purpose

requirements.

(e) Fully Compulsory Convertible Debentures (unsecured)

dal 4

As per the debenture agreement dated 12 August 2014 between the Company and IFC (International Finance Corporation), each must be rily converted on liquidity event or
maturity date whichever is earlier. Further, IFC also has a right of voluntary conversion upon giving notice to the Company within maturity date. Conversion ratia will be as provided under the
Subscription Agreement. The Interest shall accrue for a period of the first thirty six (36) months front the date of the IFC Subscription and shall be compounded on an annual basis until sucht
Interest has been paid by the Company to IFC.

The IFC CCDs bear interest at the rate of eight point five per cent (8.5%) per annum. If all IFC CCDs have not been converted in accordance with the provisions hereof by the seventh (7th)
anniversary of the TFC Subscription, the Base Interest shall increase to 10% per annum (compounded on an annual basis). Any Interest that is due but not paid by the Company shall carry an
additional interest of 2% per annum (compounded on an annual basis) from the date of default in payment of such Interest until the date of payment. However, no additional interest shall be
payable with respect to the Interest accrued during the Grace Period (first 36 months) until the seventh (7th) anniversary of the TFC Subscription.

During the current year, there were following dments in the IFC debenture agreement:

1. Removal of 21% IRR Cap for return on investment (foreign currency derivative)

2. Prior to payment of interest, the Company would be required to provide fifieen (15) business days prior notice to [FC. TFC will have an option to choose either of the following:

a) Receive the interest; or

b) Convert CCDs to equity shares of the Company in accordance with the agreed conversion formula. In the event IFC does choose this option, it would renounce the right to receive
accumulated interest or

c) Receive the interest at a later date.

Also, refer note 7 for derivative component of IFC FCCDs and note 46 for r t impact of r¢ ement of IFC CCD's.

{N The Company did not have any continuing defaults as on the batance sheet date in the repayment of loans and interest. There have been no material loan covenant defaults and there has been no intimation
from the banks/ financial institutions for recalling any loan facility.

(g) Non Cenvertible Debentures (unsecured)
As per debenture agreement dated 10 March 2021 between the Company and the deb holders, deb es shall be red d after 36 months from the deemed date of allotment. These
debentures shall bear interest at 35.72% p.a.The Interest payable on the NCDs shall be calculated from the Deemed Date of Allotment to the Interest Payment Date as per debenture agreement,

(h) Optionally Convertible Debenture (unsecured)

As per debenture subscription agreement between the Company and the debenture holders, det es shall be red d/converted after 36 months from the deemed date of allotment. These
debentures shall bear interest at 18% p.a to 25% p.a. The Interest payable on the OCDs shall be calculated from the Deemed Date of Allotment to the Interest Payment Date as per
deheg:umgrcemenL

e
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20

21

22

23

24

Non-current financial liabilities - Lease liabilities As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Lease liabilities (refer note 47) 8,862 21,885
8,862 21,885
Non current financial liabilities - Others As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Derivative component of NCDs - 20,421
Derivative component of Convertible-PIK * 1,584,700 -
1,584,700 20,421

* This represents the fair value of Convertible PIK obligation of Non-Convertible Debenture issued by Barque Hotels Private Limited and
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited during the current year. Convertible PIK is portion of accrued interest on the Debentures that may
be converted into equity shares of SAMHI Hotels Limited in accordance with the share allotment agreement of subsidiaries with the debenture
holder dated 22 October 2021 and 21 January 2022 respectively.

Non current Provisions As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 32) 16,812 16,580
Compensated absences (refer note 32) 7,860 10,794
Decommissioning liability * 1,022 1,009
25,694 28,383

* Movement in Decommissioning liability

Opening balance 1,009 1,035
Unwinding of interest during the year 13 165
Provisions utilised during the year - (191)
Closing balance 1,022 1,009
Current financial liabilities - Borrowings As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

- from bank (Overdraft facility -secured) * 4,814 6,607
- from bank # 158,500 -
- from subsidiaries ** 134,662 -
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 19) 239,734 1,083,017

537,710 1,089,624

* The Company has taken moratorium with reference to RBI circular DOR.No.BP.BC.47/21.04,048/2019-20 dated 27 March 2020 and
DOR.No.BP.BC.71/21.04.048/2019-20 dated 23 May 2020 for the period 1 March 2020 to 31 August 2020. As per aforesaid circulars, interest
will be payable post moratorium period maximum by 31 March 2021.

Overdraft from Indusind Bank carries interest rate of 10.05% p.a. (31 March 2021 - 10.05% p.a.) computed on monthly basis on the actual
amount utilised, and is repayable on demand. This is secured by exclusive charge on all present and future immovable, movable fixed assets,
current assets of propeity, and receivables.

# During the current year, the Company has obtained short term loan facility of INR 158,500 that carries an interest rate of 13% p.a. as at year
end. The loan is repayable as bullet payment after 6 months from first disbursement date.

Term loan from DBS bank is secured by:

1.Second charge on all immovable fixed assets of the Ascent Hotels Private Limited {"Subsidiary") in the Project (including the hotel property
and land) both present and future.

2.Second charge on all movable fixed assets of the Subsidiary in the Project, both present and future.

3.Second charge on all current assets of the Subsidiary in the Project, both present and future.

4,Charge by way of pledge over shares of the subsidiary.

The Company has obtained term loan facility of INR 158,500 carries an interest rate of 13% p.a. as at year end. The loan is repayable as bullet
payment after 6 months from first disbursement date.

#* includes loan received from SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited carrying interest rate of 13% p.a for general corporate purposes,
payable within 12 months from the date from 4 February 2022.

Current financial liabilities - Lease liabilities As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Lea;g/iiabil es-(refer note 47 ) 16,352 18,132

S 16,352 18,132
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Current financial liabilities - Trade payables As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 Mavch 2021

Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,302 -
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 234,230 163,067
238,532 163,067
a)Refer note 44 for disclosures under Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED).
b)Refer note 39 for related party balances
¢)The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 40.
Trade payables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Accrued Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
expenses year
MSME - 3,629 201 441 31 4,302
Others 83,443 72,968 36,768 32,001 9,050 234,230
Total 83,443 76,597 36,969 32,442 9,081 238,532
As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Accrued Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
expenses year
MSME - - - - - -
Others 63,976 47,697 35,295 11,268 4,831 163,067
Total 63,976 47,697 35,295 11,268 4,831 163,067
Current financial liabilities - Others As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Employee related payables 39,359 52,841
Payable for capital assets 2,439 2,147
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 74 -
41,872 54,088
Other current liabilities As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Advance from customers 4,882 4,319
Other advances 55,469 -
Statutory dues payable 158,966 81,770
219,317 86,089
Current provisions As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 32) 4,181 4,001
Compensated absences (refer note 32) 2,079 3,120

6,260

7,121
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For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue from operations

Sale of services

- Room revenue 256,517 179,309
- Food and beverage revenue 114,887 84,260
- Recreation and other services 251,713 176,327

623,117 439,896

Contract Balances

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the performance
obligation is over/ services delivered. Advance collection is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied.
This includes advances received from the customer towards rooms/restaurant/banquets. Revenue is recognised once the performance obligation is met
i.e. on room stay/ sale of food and beverage / provision of banquet services.

The contract assets primarily relate to excess of revenue over invoicing (i.e. unbilled revenue).

Contract liabilities

As at
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

- Advance from customers 4,882 4,319
Contract assets
- Unbilled revenue 7,003 9,161

Note: Considering the nature of business of the Company, the above contract liabilities are generally materialised as revenue and contract assets are

converted into cash/trade receivables within the same operating cycle.

Other income

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

- bank deposits 5,416 9,935
- on loan to subsidiaries 18,354 289,428
- on others 3,104 3,031
Government grant 46 39
Gain on modification of leased assets - 3,169
Gain on fair valuation of derivative component of FCCDs (refer note 7) - 2,687
Provision no longer required written back - 564
Interest on income tax refund - 992
Unwinding of discount on security deposit 402 463
Miscellaneous income 164 -
27,486 310,308
Cost of materials consumed For the year ended  For the year ended

Consumption of food and beverages

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Inventory at the beginning of the year 2,878 4,478

Add : Purchases 35,579 21,807

Inventory at the end of the year (1,477) (2,878)
36,980 23,407

Employee benefits expense

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Salaries, wages and bonus 218,468 215,714
Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer 'a’ below) 8,869 4,861
Compensated absences (refer 'b' below) - 1,207
Gratuity expense {refer 'c' below) 3,289 3,475
Staff welfare expenses 15,475 7,771

246,101 233,028
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a. Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident
Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Employees' State Insurance, which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make
the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they acerue. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to
Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Employees' State Insurance for the year aggregated to INR 8,869 (31 March 2021 - INR 4,861) Also refer
note 37.

b. Compensated absences

The Principal ‘assumptions used in determining the compensated absences benefit obligation are as given betow:

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
% %

Discounting rate 4.97 4.53

Future salary increase 5.50 5.50

c. Defined Beuefit Plan
Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15
days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, the funded status and
amounts recognized in the Standalone balance sheet for the gratuity plans.

i) Expense recognised in Profit or Loss

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 2,357 2,591
Interest cost 932 884
Total expenses recognised in the Standalone Stat t of Profit and Loss 3,289 3,475
i) R ements recognized directly in other comprehensive income

For the year ended  For the year ended
Particalars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year

- changes in demographic assumptions (18) (6}
- changes in financial assumptions (363) 411
- changes in experience adjustments 309 (735)
Amount recognized in other comprehensive income (72) (331)

iii) Change in present value of benefit obligation

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 20,581 17,515
Current service cost 2,357 2,591
Interest cost 932 884
Actuarial (gain)/loss (72) 331)
Benefits paid (2,805) (78)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 20,993 20,581

iv) Amounts to be recognized in Standalone Balance sheet

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 20,993 20,581
Funded status - -
Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet (20,993) (20,581)
Current 4,181 4,001
Non-Current 16,812 16,581
v) The principal assumptions used in determining the gratuity benefit obligation are as given below

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Y% %

Discounting rate (i} 497 4.53

Salary growth rate (ii) 5.50 5.50
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(i) The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of
the liabilities.

(i) The salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis.

As at As at
Demographic assumptions 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Retirement Age (years) 58 58
Mortality Table 1ALM (2012-2014) [ALM (2012-2014)
ultimate table ultimate table
Withdrawal Rate % %
Ages
Upto 30 Years
Corporate location 21 21
Bangalore location 49 49
Chennai location 67 67
From 31 to 44 years
Corporate location 21 21
Bangalore location 49 49
Chennai location 67 67
Above 44 years
Corporate location 21 21
Bangalore location 49 49
Chennai location 67 67

(vi) The Company best estimate of expense for the next year is INR 3,550 (31 March 2021: INR 4,001)
Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected
the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

31 March 2022
Increase * Decrease *
Discount rate (0.5% movement) 397) 413
Future satary growth (0.5% movement) 409 (397)

31 March 2021
Increase * Decrease *
Discount rate (0.5% movement) {398) 415
Future salary growth (0.5% movement) 409 (397

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the
* Positive amount represents increase in provision
+ Negative amount represents decrease in provision

d) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

As at
Year 31 March 2022
April 2022- March 2023 4,181
April 2023- March 2024 3,493
April 2024- March 2025 2,812
April 2025- March 2026 2,218
April 2026- March 2027 1,752
April 2027- March 2028 1,654
Aprit 2028 onwards 4,883
20,993
As at
Year 31 March 2021
April 2021- March 2022 4,001
April 2022- March 2023 3,445
April 2023- March 2024 2,748
April 2024- March 2025 2,189
April 2025 - March 2026 1,728
April 2026 - March 2027 1,361
April 2027 onwards 5,110

20,582
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33 Finance costs

34

35

Interest expense on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
- Fully Compulsory Convertible Debentures (FCCDs)*
- Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs)

- Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs)

- Vehicle loan

- Term loan #

- Others

- Loan from subsidiaries

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Interest expense on delay deposit of statutory dues
Other finance costs

Unwinding of discount on asset retirement obligation

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

(Restated)
Note-46

(42,674) 484,953
358,038 9,534

17,067 -
694 854
376,110 512,664
392 1,534
78,858 38,644
3,330 3,053
15,010 7,409
16,135 3,912
13 165
822,973 1,062,722

* Includes gain / (loss) on remeasurement of cash flows amounting to INR 169,658 (31 March 2021 (INR 369,388)).
# Net of interest income on bank deposits of INR 1,171 (31 March 2021 - INR 1,850) made out of loan funds

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortization of Right-to-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Other expenses

Repair and maintenance

- Building

- Machinery

- Others

Advertisement and business promotiofiommission
Communication

Consumption of stores and supplies
Contractual labour

General adininistration expenses
Insurance

Legal and professional charges

Loss on fair valuation of FCCD's

Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Management and incentive fees
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditors {refer below)

Power, fuel and water

Provision for loss allowance

Rates and taxes

Rent expenses

Training expenses

Travelling expenses

*Payment to auditers
Statutory audit
Reimbursement of expenses
Other services

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

72,318 82,877
14,397 12,635

3,257 5,636
89,972 101,148

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

5,930 11,755
13,412 5,111
14,908 7,657
11,968 8,300
12,030 5,242

2,525 5,994
19,603 8,915
7,893 2,341
6,074 5,083
2,436 3,469
54219 57,220
3,302 .
3414 -
603 -
13,998 11,878
5474 5214
2,553 2,316
43,527 31,067
160 -
16,452 15,207
. 116
953 1,322
21,999 11,991
263,433 200,207
2,300 2,200
253 66
- 50
2,553 2,316
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Earnings per share (EPS)

Net loss attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of diluted EPS *
Nominal value of equity share (INR)

Basic eaming per share (INR)

Diltuted earning per share (INR)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(808,856)
76,270,704
76,270,704

1
(10.61)
(10.61)

For the year ended
31 March 2021
(Restated)

(870,309)
76,270,704
76,270,704
|

(11.41)

(11.41)

* The outstanding potential equity shares have an anti-dilutive effect on EPS. Hence, the same have not been considered for calculation of Diluted eamings
per share.

Also, refer note 46 for restatement impact on account of remeasurement of IFC CCD's
Contingent liabilities

a) In February 2019, Supreme Court of India in its judgement clarified the applicability of allowances that should be considered to measure obligations
under The Employees' Provident Funds And Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952. The Company has been legally advised that there are interpretative
challenges on the application of judgement retrospectively and as such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past periods. In the previous
year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had made a provision for provident fund contribution for the year 2018-19 in the books of accounts amounting to
INR 2,334, During the year ended 31st March 2020, based on legal advice, the Company has reversed the provision made for the period Aprit 2018 to
February 2019 amounting to INR 2,312,

b) The Company has received an assessment order for financial year 2015-16 whereby an addition of INR 18,128 has been made to the total income of the
Company. The Company has filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals) against the said addition which is pending for disposal.
Based on the merits of the arguments put forward, the Company is of the view that the outcome will be in its favor and no provision is required to be
created in the books.

Operating Segments

The Company's Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM'), since he is responsible for all major
decisions w.r.t. the preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and expansion of any new
facility. CODM has examined the Company's performance from product and geographic perspective and has identified a single business segment ie.
“Developing and running of hotels”, hence no specific disclosures have been made.

A. Information about products and services
The Company primarily deals in one business namely "Developing and running of hotels”, therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable.

B. Information about geographical areas
The Company provides services to customers in India. Further, there are no non-current assets located outside India.

C. Information about major customers (from external custoniers)
The Company does not derive revenue from one customer which would amount to 10 per cent or more of the entity’s revenue.
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39 Related partv disclosures
() Related partv and nature of refated party relationship where control exists:
Description of relationship Name of the Party
Entities with joint control Blug Chandra Pte Limited

GTI Capilal Alpha Private Limited
Goldman Sachs Investment Holding (Asia) Ltd.

Subsidiaries (Including step-down subsidiasy) SAMEI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
SAMHI Hotels (Gurgaon) Private Limited
Barque Hotels Private Limited
SAMEHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Ascent Hotels Private Limited
Argon Hotels Private Limited
Pautmech Hospitatity Private Limited (*Step-down subsidiary™)

{b) Related parties with whom transactions have taken during the current/previous year:

Deseription of relationship Name of the Party
Entities with joint controf Blue Chandra Pte Limited
Subsidiaries SAMEHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

SAMHI Hotels (Gurpaon) Private Limited
Barque Hotels Private Limited

SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

Ascent Hatels Private Limited

Argon Hotels Private Limited

Kev managerial personnel (KMP) Ashish Jakhanwala (Managing digector and CEQ)
Raiat Mehra (Chief Financial Officer)

Relative of key managerial personmel (KMP) Arti Jakhanwata

Enterprises in which Director have controf or exervise significant influence (Manav Thadani) Thadani Ventures LEP

(<) Related party transactions durlng the year:

Particulars Entities with joint control Subsidiary Key manageriat personnel (KMP),
Relatives of KMP & Enterprises in
which KMP/Director have control or
exercise significant inffuence

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022 § 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

U, § loan given - loan portlon

Argon Hotels Private Limited - - 122,750 36,200 - -
Repayment of d loan

Argon Hotels Private Limitad - : - 747,080 - -
Rej of d loan received - loan portion

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited - - 6.300 56,799 - -
Interest expense

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited - - 76455 38644 - -
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited - - 2.4 - - -
Arti Jakh 1 - - - - 1,736 -
Thadani Ventures LIP - - - - 6,500 -
Interest {ncomte an unsecured loan

Arpon Hotels Povate Limited - - 3045 289,428 - -
Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - 13,309 -, - -
Ashish - - - - 300 3031
U | loan given - directly ised a3 deemed investment

SAMHI Hotels (Gurpaon) Private Limited - - - 92,100

CASPIA Hotels Private Limited - b - 146,466 - -
Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - - 142,450 - -
Barque Hotels Private Limited - 3 254,550 336,166 - -

Loss on early repayment of loan o subskdiary company - direetly recognised as deemed

nvestment
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited - - 4,136 37823 - -
af expenses from

SAMHI Hotels ( Ahmedabad) Private Limited - - 1,020 300 - -
Argon Hotels Private Limited - - - 2,350 - -
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited - - 2992 914 - -
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited = - 12 - - -
| Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - 38 - - N
Repayment of d loan given - directly adjusted through deemed

SAMHI Hotzls (Ahmedabad) Private Limited - - - 20,000, - -
CASPLA Hotgls Private Limited - - 35.000 - - -

Modification in terms ofloan piven - reclassed to deemed investment
Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - - 172.802 - =
Argon Hotels Private Limited - - 2731474 - - -
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Particulars Eatitics with joint controt Subsidiary Key managerial personnet (KMP),
Relatives of KMP & Enterprises in
which KMP/Director have cuntrotor
exercise significant lnfluence

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 Mavch 2021 | 3t March 2022 | 31 March 2021

Salz of Services - Recreatian and ather services (excluding taxes)

SAMHI 1V Business Hotels Private Limited - - 77466 17,051 - -
SAMHI Hotels (Gurgaon) Private Limited - - 11,026 11416 - -
Barqus Hotels Private Limited - - 64,094 20804 - -
SAMHI Hatels (Ahmedabad) Privats Limited - - 21,472 23618 - -
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited - - 23,977 24,131 - -
Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - 23,997 30574 - -
Argon Hotels Private Limited - - 19494 37430 - -
Optional Convertible Debentures (unsecured)

Arti Jakhanwata - - - - 10,000 -
Thadani Ventures LLP - - - - 28,500 -

Uasecured loans received from subsidiaries

SAMHI JV Business Hetels Private Limited - - 903,543 - - -
SAMHI Hotels (Alimedabad) Private Limited - - 132,500 - - R

Unsecured loans given to subsidiary
Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - 808,500 - - -

Advance given to subsidlary
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited - - 830,000 - - -

Advance received from subsidiary
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited - - R48.500 - - N

Derivative component of convertlble-PIK obligation

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited - - 863,300 - - -
Barque Hotels Private Limited (et of gain) - - 721,400 N B N

Conversion of fully compulserily convertible debentures (“FCCDs™) into equity shares

Bargue Hotels Private Limited - - 955,763 - - -

Reimbursement of expenses to
Blue Chandra Pte Limited 3641 - - - - -

Key management personne compensation
Ashish Jakhanwala
Short-Term ¢mployee benetits# - - - - 30,600 IRH68
Post-emploviment benefits * - - - - 370, 363
Rajat Mehra
Stiort-Term employge benefitsh - - - - 17,722 14836
Post-employment benefils * - - - - 621 180

* Gratuity and compensated absences have been provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole. Accordingly, separate figures are not available on an individual basis and, thus, not included.

# This amount is exclusive of any provision made for employze benefits during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2 the company has issusd Non Convertible Debenture to GTI Capital Epsiton Private Limited and Mercer T (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. of ing to INR 150,000 and INR
720,000 respectively. GT1 Capital Epsilon Private Limited and Mercer Investments (Singapore) Pte Ltd are related pasties of equity shareholder of the company ie. GTI Capital Alpha Private Limited and Goldman Sachs
Investments Holding (Asia) Limited respectively.

In addition to transactions above,
- refer note 19 (a) in respect of security provided by subsidiary for foan from Standard Chartered Bank and DBS Bank
- refer note 19 (b in respect of security provided by subsidiary for toans from Piramal Capital and Housing Finance Limited.

(d) Related party balances

Particulars Entities with joint control Subsidiary Key managerial personnel (KMP),
Relatives of KMP & Enterprises in
which KMP/Director have controlor
exercise significant influence

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 :

Unsecured loan (Including accrued interest)
Argon Hotels Private Limited - - 127,669 2,131 474 - -

Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - 820,478 - - -

Other loans and advances (including accrued interest)
Ashish Jakl - - - - 44,821 41,790
Rajat Mehra 2,500
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Particulars Entities with joint control Subsidiary Key manageriai personnet (KMP),
Relatives of KMP & Enterprises in
which KMP/MDirector have control ar
exerdcise significant influence

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

Investment in equity shares

SAMH] JV Business Hotels Private Limited - - 1,617,049 1,617.049 - -
SAMHI Hotels (Gurgaon) Private Limited - - 721,323 721,323 - -
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited - - 114,848 114,848 - -
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited - - 613,997 615,997 - -
Barque Hotels Private Limited - - 2,039,887 1,084,124 - -
Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - 1,196,000 1,196,000 - -
Argon Hotels Private Limited - - 20000 20,000 - -

Investment in 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
SAMHI Hotels (A d) Private Limited - - 1,260,000 1,260,000 - -

Investment in 10% unsecured fully compulsorily convertible debentures - deemed investment

Barquz Hotels Private Limited - - - 935,763 - -
Trade payables

Blug Chandra Pte Limited 3641 - - - - -
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited - - 603 727 - -
SAMHI (Ahmedabad) Hotels Private Eimited - - 1,333 513 - -
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited - - 12 - - .
Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - 38 - - -

Trade receivables

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited - - 97,016 19,950 - -
SAMH]I Hotels (Gurgaon) Private Limited - - - 1857 - -
Barque Hotels Private Limited - - 63,899 14297 - -
Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - - 3771 - -
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited - - - 233 - -
SAMHI (Ahmedabad) Hotels Private Limited - - - 18,931 - -
Argon Hotels Private Limited - - 22,163 - - -

Current labilities - Others

CASPIA Hotels Private Limited - - 20,490 - - -
SAMHI (Ahmeddabad) Hotels Private Limited - - 31,768 - - -
Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - 3202 - - -
SAMHI Hotels (Gurpaon) Private Limited - - 8 - - -
Deemed investment - Ui iloan

SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited - - 533,488 535,488 - -
SAMHI Hotels (Gurgaou) Private Limited - - 339,542 339,542 - -
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited - - 2632423 2667423 - -
Barque Hotels Private Limited - - 2,451,028 2,196,478 - -
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited - - 41,959 37,823 - -
Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - 315252 315252 - -
Argon Hotels Private Limited - - 2,731 474 - . .
Qplional Convertible Debentures l including accrued interest)

Arti - - - - £1,353 -
Thadani Ventures LLP - - - - 34,330 -

Unsecured loan received - loan portion
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited - - 1,317,883 345,205 - -

Deemed tnvestment - Overdraft facilities at concessionai rate
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited - - 4,806 4,896 - -
Barque Hotels Private Limited - - 18,690 18,690 - -

Other current financlal assets -Other receivables

CASPIA Hotels Private Limited - - - 332 - .
Argon Hotels Private Limited - - - 2,147 - -
SAMHI (Abmedabad) Hotels Private Limited - - - 819 - -

Unsecured loan received {including accrued Interest)
SAMHI (Ahmedabad) Hotels Private Limited - - 134,662 . . R

Derivative companent of convertibie-PLK obligati
SAMHI JV Business Holels Private Limited - - 863,300 - - -
Barque Hotels Private Limited - - 721 400 - N -

The Company has provided underiaking en behalf of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited, CASPIA Hotels Private Limited, Ascent Hotels Private Limited, Barque Hotels Private Eimited, SAMHI JV Business
Hotels Private Limited and SAMHI Hotels (Gurgaon) Private Limited in respect of loans obtained from Banks/Financial institutions.

Further, corporate guarantes has been provided to Starwood Hotel and Resorts India Private Limited [Operutor of SAMHI Hotels (Ahntedabad) Private Limited] pursuant to the Operating scrvices agreement entered by
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited.

Also corporate guarantes has been provided to IHG (India) Private Limited and THG (Asia) Pacific Pte Ltd [Operators of Barque Hotels Private Limited) pursuant to the Operating services agreement entered by Barque
Hotels Private Limited.

Following shares held by SAMHI Hotels Limited in subsidiaries have been pledged with bankers/financial institutions in respect to foans obtained by subsidiaries

Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Subsidiary
Barqus Hotels Private Limited 38,375,079 15,323,514
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited 5,400,000 5,400,000
Ascent Hotels Private Limited 127,801,485 127,801,483
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited 124,779,999 124,779,999
Argon Hotels Private Limited 2,331,148 2,331,148

The transactions with related parties are nade on terms equivalent to those that prevail in am’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and are settled in cash.
For the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owsd by related parties. This assessment is undertaken at each reporling period.
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40 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk managentent

A) Finandial instruments by category and falr value

The below tabla summarnizes the judgements and ¢stimates made in determining the fair vatues of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measued at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the

financiat statements. To provide an indication about the refiability of the nputs nsed in detenmining fair value, the company has classilied its financial instruments into the three levels preseribed under the 2ccounting standard.

Pardadars Asat
31 March 2022
Level of Fair Value Through Profit and Falr Value Through Other Amortised Cost
hierarchy Lass (FVTPL) Comprchensive Income (FYTOCT)
Finandal assets
Nen-current
Teans 3 - 1006931
Others
Bonk deposits with niore than 12 months maturily. - 101 78{
Security deposits 3 -] 16401
I
Current 1
Loans 3 - - 4260}
Trade receivabl | | 208,054
Cash and cash equivakents B ] 482,131
Bank balances other than cash aud cash equivalents above B | 1.761
Others - | 11,724
Total finandal assets - | 1,836,890
Financlal Habilities
[Nan-current
i 2 | 7,754,367
Leass fiabilifies 3 - - 8,362
Others 2 1.384.700] N ]
Current
2 - | 537,710
Lease liabilities a | | 16352
Trade payables p - 238,532/
Others - | 11372
Total finandal lisbilides 1,584,700 | 8,597,695
Particulars Asat
31 March 2021
Leve of Fair Value Through Profit and Fair Value Through Other Amortised Cast
Nierarchy Lass (FVTLL) Comprehensive Incame (FVTOCT)
Finandal assets
{Non-current
Loans 3 i -] 2,775,764
Bank deposits veith more than 12 months maturity - - 57,285,
Derivative componznt of IFC FCCDs 2 33021 ] -
Security deposiis 3 - | 15,805
Current
Trade receivables - -] 92343
Cash and eah equi | - 664217
Others | - 14847
Total finandl assets 3302 - 3610761
inancial Habililes
Nosi-current
Borrow 2 K | 5464752
Lease tishilities 3 E B 21385
Others 2 20421 -
Current
2 | - 1.089.624
Lease linbiities 3 | - 18,132
“Trade payables - | 163,067
Others | | 51938
[Total finandal iabilities 20,121 | 6.812.148]
Finandial assets and Habilities measured at falr value - recurring fair vahie measurements :
Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Flnancial Assets
Non-curreat financial assets - Others (Level 2) ** - 3302
* Represents fair value of Derivative camponeat of [FC FCCDs.
Financial Liabilities
Noa-current financial liahilities - Others (Level 2} * 1,584,700 204421

* Represents fair vatue of Derivative component of Convertible- PIK & NCDs.
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Financiat assets and Uabilities measured at amortised cosit ~ Fair value measurements

Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Finandal Assets
Nodt-curreat boans (Level 3) ¢ 63,808 59,972
Nou-carreat Barrowings (Level 3) ¢ 1,880,843 1,923,518
Noa-curent Borrowings (Level 3) ¥+ 318,923 33LAT
Nou~current Bomowings (Levet 3) ¥4+ 1,417,385 350,362

* Repwesents fair value of security deposits and Joan to KMP
** Represents {air value of TFC FCCDs

€49 Represents fiir valus of loan fom subsidiary

*4+% Represents i value of NCCDs

The fir value of trada receivebles, unbitled revenue, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other current financial assets, current borrowings, currennt trade payables and other curreat finaneial liabilities approximate their camying smounts, due to their short-term natuce.
Interest rates on non-<carrent borrowings (term loans from banks) are equivalent to the market rate. Such borrowings are contracted at floating rales and mies are reset ot short intervals. Accordingly, the carrying value of such barrowings approximates fair vatue.

Fair value of bank deposits inchuded in other noa-current faancial assets are equivalent to their vanying amount, as the interest rate on them is equivalent to maret rate.

The carrying vatue of lease isbilities and non-current trade payables approximates the fair vaues 33 on the reporting date, as these are carried at amortised cost and are based o the et preseot value of the anticipated futurs cach flows using applicable discount rate

The fuir vatues for security depasits forming part of noa~current uther financial assets were catoulited based vn discounted cash flows using an appropriate discount rafe.

B) Measurement of falr values

The different levels of Fxir valuc have been defined below:

Level Iz Lovel 1 hicrarchy includes financial instruments measted using quoted prices. This inclades listed equity instraments, traded bonds and mutust funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments {including bouds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valusd using the closing prise a5
at the reporting pericd.

Level 2: The fair vahte of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, tradad bonds, over-he counter dedvatives) is determined using valustion techmiques which maximise the use of observablo nuarket dats and rely as lide a5 possible on entity-specific estimates. If il significant inputs
required to Exir value an instrument are observable, the fustrument is inctaded in level 2.

Levet 3: If oae or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in tevel 3,

There have been ao transfers in either direction for the years ended 31 Masch 2022 and 31 March 2021, except as disclased abave.

The company's palicy is to recognise transfers into and transfess out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting periad.

©) Valuation technique used to determine fair vatue

Speific valuation teshniqua used to value financial instraments inctude:

- the Eir value for derivative compoacat of [FC FCCDs is calcalated using Binomiat option pricing model.

- the fiir value for IFC FCCDs is calculated hased oa cash fows of interest payments discounted using current lending rate and equity value using a discounted cash flow approach
« the fair value for derivative companent of NCD's is calculated using Discounted eash flaw method,

- the fair value for equity component af convertible PIK obligation is calcutated using discounted cash flow method and monte carla simulations

“The fair value of security deposits were calenlated basad on cash flows discounted using lending rate

D) Details of bie inputs for of fair values

unobservable inputs Inter-relationship between Sgnificant unabservable inputs and fafr value

A. Finandial assets and lablfities measured at falr value
Valuation of IFC FCCDs (Other non-current finandat tiabilitles)
As en 31 March 2622

Business Value - INR 1,419,780 (31 March 2021 [,811.789)

The estimated fair value would inerease (decrease) ifl the business value was higher (fower)

Risk: Frec rate » 34625 (31 march 20211 6.18%3)

The estimated Fair vahic would decreass (inerease) if the sk free rate was higher (lower)

Volatility rute - 76.70% (31 March 2021: 44,0525}

The estimated fair value would increase {decnease) i€ the volatifity rate was higher (lower)

jvati of IFC FCCDs (Other non-current finandal assets)

As on 31 March 2021

Growth rats - 3.00%

The estimated fair value would increase (decrease) if the annual growth rate was higher (lower)

'WACC rate - 11.21%

The estimated fair vatue would devrease (increase) if the WACC rate was higher (fower)

Volatilty mte - 44 05%

The ¢stimated fair value would increase (decrease) if the volatiity mte was higher (Jower)

Derivative component of convertible PIK obligation (Other non-current financial Habilities)

Enterprise vatue of Campany ("EVY) Th A Fair value ifthe EV was higher (lower)
Risk free rate 3§ March 2022 - 4.61%; 31 March 2021 - NA) Th: 1fair vatue vould if the ridk fies ris was bighar (lowes)
i emimstod Fo vahae woak "

Volatitity rate (31 March 2022-92.20%5: 31 Mirch 2021 - NA)

i the volstility was kigher (ower)

Derivative of NCDs (Other non-current finzndal liabilitles)

'WACC rate (31 March 2022 - Nil, 31 March 2021 - 20.50%%)

The estimated i vafus would decrease {inerease) if the WACC rate was highe (fower)

B. Finandal assels and Habilitics measured at amortised cest

Security depasits and inter corporate Joans (Non-current borrowings)

Risk adjusted discount rate

{FC FCCDs (Non-current borrowings)

Risk adjusted discount rate, Risk free rate, Volatility rate

NCBs (N th

Risk adjusted discount rate, Growth rate, WACC

E. Sendtivity analysis of Level 2 fair values

() For the fair valus of derivative compoant of IFC FCCDs, resscrnsbly possible changes at the reparting dat dse a one of the sigrificant mobservable xpats, holding other irpats ccastant, woald hive follawing effects

Profit ar (loss) / Equity, net of tax

Increase Decrease
31 March 2022
Business Value (5.0% movement) 37200 (36.400)
Risk Free rate (1.0%4 movement) 8.100 (3,100)
Volatifity rate (1.0% movement) 6,900 (6,900)
Profit or (loss) / Equity, net of tax
Increase Decrease
31 March 2021
Growth mte (0.5% movement) 783 (696)
WACC rate (0.3% movement) (1.283) 3757
Volatitity rate (0.3% movement) 202 {206)
(b) For the fair vatus of daivative componat of NCDs, reasonsbly pocaible changes af the reporting date e b oma of th bscrvable iapats, holding ather npats constant, weald bave follawing ffects,
Profit or (loss) / Equily, net of tag
Increase Decrease
31 March 2022
YTM (1% movement) . .
Profit ar Quss) / Equity, net of tax
Increase Decrease
31 March 2028
19,792 (2L073)

YTM (195 movement)
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(€) For the fair value of convertible PIK reasonably possible chinges at the seposting date due ta one of the significant unobservisble inputs, holding olher inputs coastant, woukd have following effects

() SAMHIJY Business Hotels Private Limited ("subsidiary™)
Prafit oy (loss), nef of tax

Tncrease Decresse
31 March 2022

Businas valne (576 mavanent) (40,100} 40,008
Risk fres rmt2 (1% movanait) . $00 1900)
Vulatility rate (125 movement) (700 700

(ii) Barque Hotels Private Limited ("subsidiary™)
Profit or (fess), net of tag

31 March 2022 Increase Decrease

Busiaess valuz (3% movement} (31,500) 33200

Risk free rate (1% mavement) 700 (800)
Volatlity rate (195 novement) (700) 600

F. Reconeiliation of Level 2 fair vatues

Derivative companent of IFC FCCDs Amount

Balance as at | April 2020 615
Net chasge in fair value reognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (refec note 30) 2687
Batance as at 31 Masch 2021 3302
Net chauge in fair valus recogaised in Statement of Profit and Lass (refer note 35 (3,302)
Batance as at 31 March 2022 -
Derivative component of NCDs

Balance as at 1 Apeil 2020 -
Fair value of detivative component recagaised during the year 20,421
Batance as at 31 March 2021 20,921
Fair value of derivative component reversed during the year (0.421)
Balanco as at 3t March 2022 -
Derisative companent of convertible PIK

Balance as at 34 March 2021 -
Fair value of derivalive componeat recognised during the year 1,584,700
Balance as at 3t March 2022 1,584,700

G. Finandial risk management
Riskmanagement framenark
The Company's activities expase 10 & vasiety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate fisk), credit risk and liquidiy risk

The Company's CFO under the dicectons of the boasd of dirctors implemeats finsaial sk management policies 0sross the Company. The Compuany's risk management pofices are estabished 0 ideatify and analyse the risks faced by the Company;, o set approprata isk Emits and controls. o monitor tisks and
adherénce to limits in order i minimize the financial impact of such risks, The risk management policies and systems are feviewed regularty 10 reflect changes it market conditions and the Company's activities

L Credit rik

Credit risk s the risk of financial loss to the Company if 3 customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual ebligations. The carrying amount of financial assels represent lhe maximum credit fisk exposure. The Company has credit poficies in place and the exposures to these eredit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis

To cater to the credit risk for balances with d ia institutions and i only high mted institations are aceepted.

The Company has gives security deposits b Govemment depustments and to vendors for sacuring services from them and rental deposits foc cmployee ascommodatious. The Company has loan / FCCDs / other receivable balances outstanding as at year end from its subsidiaries KMP Fusther, the Company has
recogaised govemment geant recoverable in respect of export incentives. The Compuany docs not expect any defsult from these parties and accordingly the risk of defautis negligible or il

Dertvatives includes derivative component of TFC FCCDs, NCD's and convertible PIK obligation. The Company considers that this has a Jow eredit risk as this tnsaction is with & pasty of high repute.

In respect of cradil expasures from trade receivables/untilled revenue, the Company has policiesin place to ensure that sales on credit without collaterat are made principally to travel agents and corporate compani¢s with an appropriate credit history. Sales to other customers are made in cash or by credit cards.

The Company establishes an llowance for impuimnent that represents 1 expected craditosses in respect of trade receivables. The management uses  simplified approzch for the purposs of computation ef expected creditoss foc trade receivables. In mouitoring sustamer credit sk, customers s grouped asconfing
to their credit characteristics, including whether they are as individual or fegal entity, their geographical location, industry and existence of previous financial difficulties, if any.

During the period, the Company s maik no write-1ts of trade receivables.

tiation of foss atlowance provison

For the year ended For the year ended
31 Maych 2022 31 March 2021
Opening babiice 3.0% 3654
Changes n toss allowance 160 (584)
Clesing balance 3250 3,090

The impairment provisions for financial assets disckosed above are based on assumptions about risk of defoult and expected s rates The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selevting the inputs to the impeirment calcutation, based on the Company’s past histery, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting perod.

i, Liquidity risk
The Company's approach to managing iquidity i 1o easuce. as far as possible, that it will have sufficieat liquidity to meet its abilties when they are due, under botk nomal and stiessed conditions

Ultimate sesponsitslity for liquidity risk management rests with the Company”s boand of directors, which has established an iats liquidity risk: framework for the manazement of the Company’s shert-term, medium teem and long-term funding and liquidity managemeat requirements

Refernote 49 which covers liquidity risk management of the Company.
(2) Expasure to Hquidley risk
The follaing ae the rem 2ining contrachu] matusities of financial Gabiliies 1 the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted.

Contractug] cash flows
31 March 2022 Carmying smount Total 01 year 12 years 25 years

Mare than § years

Derivative financial liabilities

Non cunzut financial Hiabilities others . 1,384,700 1,384,700 - - 1,384,700 -
1,584,700 1,584,700 - - 1,584,700 -
Nen - derivative financial Habitides
Nog-current borrowings * $ 7.754.3617 7,668,336 - 1,841,803 3479358 2347672
Lease liabdlities 25244 27.198 12132 9.066 - -
Current bomowings § 337,710 331,710 337710 - - -
Trade payables 238532 233,532 238532 - - -
Other cunent finaciat habdities $ 41,872 41,872 41872 - - -

8,597,695 8,514,147 836,246 1,850,871 3,479,358 2,347,672
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Contractual cash flows
31 March 2021 Carrying amount Total Ot year 12 years 2.5 years More than 5 years

Non-derivative finandal Habilides

Non-usrent borrowings * $ 5464,752 - 232,229 2,548,547 2412879
Lease [iabilities 40,017 43330 18,132 18,132 9,066 -
Current bonowings § 1,089,624 6,607 6,607 - - -
Trade payables 163,067 163,067 163,067 - - -
Other current financial liabilities S 54,988 1,138,005 1,138,005 - - -

6,812,448 6,546,664 1325811 250,361 2557613 2,412,879

» Non-current borrowings includs IFC FCCDs amounting to INR 1,260,000, Thers is 1o liquidity risk on thess instruments as these are convertible into equity shares. Accordingly, the same is ot conshdered in the above disclosure. Further, the managemeat of the Comgany intends to pay interest aceried on such

FCCDs upoa expiry of 7 years from IFC subscription date which has beea disclosed accerdingly.
S The details disclosed are after id the impact fum with reference to RBL circutar DOR No.BPBC 47721 04.04872019-20 dated 27 March 2020 and DOR No BP.BC.71/21,04.0482019-20 dated 23 May 2020 for the period 1 March 2020 to 31 August 2020.
(&) Finandng arrangements
The Company had access fo the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the ead of the reparting period:
Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Floating rate
Overdraft tacilities from hank 43,186 43335
Tem laans from banks! financial institutions 350000 60.635
595,186 103,970
ik Market sk
The Company is exposad to market risk primarily relating 1o the risk of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, that will ifect the Company's expense of the value of its hokdings of financial instruments.
Currency risk
The Company’s exposure to foreian currency risk is on account of payables of expenditure in curmencies other than the functions! cumrency of the Compuny.
Exposure ta currency risk
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
USTHin thousand USD in thousand
Finandal labilities
Trade payables 1432 1343
1,432 1313
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
INR in thousand INR in thousand
Finandal Habilities
Trade payables 108,563 98,717
108,563 98,717
Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengtheaing (weakening) of the Indian Rupes 2gainst US dollars st 31 March would have affected the of fimancial i inated in US doltars and affected equity and profit and Joss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables. in
pasticutar interest rates, remain constant and igaores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.
(Profity or loss Equity, net of tax
Effectin INR Y Weakening i Weakening
31 March 2022
1% mavement
1,086 (1.086) 1086 {1086}
1,086 {1,086) 1,086 (1,886)
(Profit) or lass Equity, net of tax
Effectin INR heni: Weakening S| th Weakening
31 March 2021
1% maventent
usp 987 (987) 987 (987)
987 (987) 937 (987)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate fisk is the risk that tha fair value or future cash flows of a finneial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest fates retates primarily b the Company's barrowings with floating interest rates.

The Compuany evaluates the interest mtes in the market on a regulir basis 10 explors the option of refinancing of the borowings of the compuny. Moveaver, the company’s curment borowings are inked to floating interest rates, thereby resulting in the adjustments of its borrowing osts in fine with the market interest
Exposure o interest rate risk

The iaterest rate prufile of the Company’s interest-bearing fnancial mstruments is as follows:
Noeminal amount

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assets - Bank deposits 103,139 57,285
Financiaf liabufitics - IFC FCCDs 1,830,843 1,923,518
Financial fiabilities » Nou Convertible Debentures 1,417,385 857,814
Financial liabilities - Optional Convartible Debeatures 93,360 -
Financial liabilities - Vehicl loans 39353 3.218

3,498,680 2,846,835
Varfablerate instruments
Finaneial iabilities - Ovendsat facility from bank 4814 6,607
Financial lial - Term laan from bank 3,080,668 2.380.187
Financial tiabilities - Term koan from institutions 200,074 1,032827

3,285,556 3419,621
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Company docs not account for any fixed-mte financial assets or financial tiakilities at tair value through profit or foss. Theeefore, a change in interest rtes at the reporting date would not affect profit or foss.
Cash itow sensitivity analysts lor variable-rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reportiag date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or Joss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that afl other variables, remain constant,

(Prafity or lass Equity, net of tax
100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

31 March 2022
Variable-rate instruments 34283 (34,283) 34283 (34.280)
Cush flaw sensitivity (net) 34,283 (34,283) 34,283 (34,283)

31 March 2021
Variable-rate instruments 41363 dL,363) 41,363 (1,363
Casks flow sensitivity (net) 31363 1,363 11363 A1,363)
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Capital Management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future devetopment of the business.
The Board of directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position.

The Company monitors capital using loan to value (LTV) method to ensure that the loan to value does not increase beyond 65% on any given reporting date at a group
level,

As a part of its capital management policy, the Company ensures compliance with all covenants and other capital requirements related to regulatory or contractual
obligations of material consequence to the Company. Also, refer note 49.

Transfer Pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing regulation under Sections 92-
92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company continuously
updates its documentation for the international and domestic transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year. The management is of
the opinion that its international and domestic transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the standalone financial
statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

Disclosure as per Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements

Name of subsidiaries Principal activity Principal place of Ownership interest
business
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited Hotels India 100% 100%
SAMHI Hotels (Gurgaen) Private Limited Hotels India 100% 100%
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited Hotels India 100% 100%
Barque Hotels Private Limited Hotels India 100% 100%
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited Hotels India 100% 100%
Ascent Hotels Private Limited Hotels India 100% 100%
Argon Hotels Private Limited Hotels India 100% 100%

The above investment in subsidiaries are measured at cost.

Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)
As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Dues to micro and small suppliers

The amounts remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year:
Principal amount 4,302 -
Interest there on 347 -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 - -
(MSMED Act, 2006)

The amount of payments made to Micro and Small Suppliers beyond the appointed day during each accounting year - -

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond 150 -
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 497 -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the - -
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small
enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable
to such enterprises as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company.
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45 Share-based paymients (Equity settled)
On 10 November 2016, the board of direstors of the Company approved Employes Stock Opticn Plan 2016' ("the Plan®) that eatitles senior employees to purchase shares in the Company. These opticus provide the

helders of such vested oplicus, the opportunity 10 acquire equity shares in the Company in the future at the exercise price menticned in the option certiticate. Alf epticas are to be settled by equivalent number of
equity shases of Rs. 1 ¢ach as per the terms of the scheme. The key terms and coaditicns refated to the grants under this plan are as follows:

Grant date/employees entitled Number of Exerclse Price Vesting period # Contractual life of optians
instruments {INR) {years) *
Scheme 1:
Opticns granted to senior employees aa 21 November 2046
Tranche 1 1,099,020 130.0 |- 60%a by Gruat date 736
- 4025 by 31 December 2016
Tranche | 539,470 1300 |- 3026 by Grant date 736

- 30% by 31 December 2016
- 4034 by 31 December 2017

Tranche 2 275,790 £15.4 |- 3022 by Grant date. 7.36
- 30%% by 26 November 2017
- 405 by 26 November 2018

Tranche 3 124,400 19£9 |- 1022 by Grant date 736

- 20% by 22 September 2017
- 30% by 22 September 2018
- 40% by 22 September 2019

Scheme 2:
Optious granted to senjor employees oa 2 March 2047 560,000 224.8 |- 30% by 20 March 2013 7.03
- 3675 by 20 March 2019
- 402 by 20 March 2020

# As per the terms of the scheme, if a iquidity event occurs before the vesting period specified sbove, options shall vest in full upen the ocaurrence of the fiquidity event. However, if the liuidity evant occurs pror to
the first anniversary of the grant date of an optica, such optica shail not be capable of vesting and shall Japse os the date of such Hquidity event. tn such o siteation. the Compensaticn Commitlee shall determing how
1o compensate employees in respect of options that would otherwise have vested at the time of that liquidity event in accordance with the Plan.

+ Coatractual fife of options has been disclosed based o the assampticu that management expects the fiquidity event to arise by 3t March 2024.
Exercise period:

(8) in the event of liquidity event, such bie period as determined by the comp committee
() in the event of an carly exercise epportunity, Within a reasonable period prior ta the anticipated date of completiou of any proposed sale by a selfing shascholder.

Number optlons granted, exerclsed and forfelted during the year:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2012 31 March 2021

Number of options E‘:;'g’g‘:‘: !i‘:(';\?;) Numbsr of options | ‘U“‘: .;\:KSQ,E“"[“
Options outstanding at beginaing of year 2472300 1518 2472300 1518
Options granted during the year - . -
Options exercised during the year . . . .
Opticus focfeited during the year . . . .
Options lapsed dusing the year - . . .
Opticus expired during the year - B} . .
Options outstanding at the cad of year 2472300 1518 7472300 T5is
Options exercisable at the end of year T - - .

The options cutstanding ot the end of year had exerise prices in the range of Rs. 115.40 to Rs 224.80 and o weighted average remaining conteactual life of up t0 0.29 years (31 March 2019: 0.29 to 1.29 years).

Measurement of fair values

The tair value at grant date is determined using the Binomial option pricing Model which takes into account the exerdise prive, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the
underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the optica.

The binomial medet is based on the description of an undedying instrament over a period of time rather than a single point. [t breaks down the time to expiration into potentially a very large number of time intervals.
of steps. A tree of stock prices is initially produced working forward from the preseat to expiration. At each step it is assumed that the stock price will move up or down by an amount calcutated using volatitity and

lirne to expiration. This produces a binomial distribution, of undzrlying stock prices. The tree represents sll the possible patbs that the stock price could take during the 1ife of the option

The optica prices at each step of the tre are calculaled werking back from expiration to the present. The optice prices at each step are used to derive the option prices at the nest step of the tree using sk netral
valustion based o the probsbilities of the stock prices moving up or down. the risk frec 1ate and the time interval of each step.

The fair value of the options and the inputs used ins the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-setiled shase based payment plans are as follows:

Scheme 1 Scheme 2
Tranche | Tranche 2 Tranche 3
Weighted average fair value of the optioas at the grant dates (INR) 190 40.60 1820 13.70
Share price at grant date (INR) 121,00 1200 121.00 128.80
Excrcise price (INR) 136.00 11540 191.90 22420
[Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 35.89%) 35.39% 35.89% 35.89%
Expected life (in years) 0 t0236 or 010236 01 022,36 o Qto2030r
0103.36 019336 0t03.36 0103.03
Expested dividend 0.00% 0.00% 0.60% 0.00%%
Risk-fres interest cate (based cn boads) 6.22% 6.22%| 622%] 6.82%]

The risk free interest rates are determined hased on the current yield to maturity of Govemment Bends with 10 years residuat maturity. Expected velatifity has besn based on an evatuation of the historical volatility of
listed dlosest peer companies afler making suitable adjustment on account of lock of marketability end size, pacticolarly over the historical period commensurate with the expected term. The expected life has been

idered based an the icn that ma at expects the liquidity event to arise by 31 March 2019 oc 31 March 2020, The expected life may not necessarily be indicative of the exercise pattems that may
ocaur. Dividend yietd has been calculated taking into account the expected rate of dividend ca equity share price as ca the grant date.

In accordanca with the above mentioned Scheme, INR Nif (31 March 2021 - INR Nil) has been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in relation o the opticas vested dying the year as share based payment
expense. Further, during the cument year ended 31 March 2022, share based payment fiabilities bas been written back amounting to INR Nif (31 March 2021 - INR Nit).

Further, during the current year, the board of directors of the Company has approved that there would be no furthee grant of opticus undee the Ptan.
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46 Restatements
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company issued 1,260,000 Fully Compulsory Convertible Debentures (FCCDs) of face vatue INR 1,000 each.
These FCCDs were classified as a financial liability instrument and recorded at amortised cost.

In the current year, it was noted that measurement of FCCDs was oot in line with the prevailing accounting standards. This has been corrected by restating
each of the affected financial statement line items for prior period. The following table summarises the impacts on the standalone financial statements.

Reported amount Restatement As at 31 March
as at 31 March 2021
2021 (Restated)
a) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Other equity 7,871,409 232,162 8,103,570
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 5,696,914 (232,162) 5,464,752
Reported for the For the year
year ended 31 ended 31 March
March 2021 Restatement 2021
(Restated)
Expenses
Finance costs 751,027 311,695 1,062,722

b) There is no impact on statement of cash flows of operating, investing and financing activities on account of remeasurement of IFC CCD's

Reported amount Restatement As at 31 March
as at 31 March 2020
2020 (Restated)
¢) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Other equity 8,429,692 543,857 8,973,549
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities

Financial Habilities

Borrowings 4,717,901 (543,857) 4,174,043

Reported for the
year ended 31

For the year
ended 31 March

d) Earnings per share (EPS) March 2021 Restatement 2021
(Restated)
Basic earning per share (INR) (7.32) (4.09) (11.41)
Diluted earning per share (INR) (7.32) (4.09) (1141

¢) All related disclosures for the year ended 31 March 2021 (comparative period), have been restated, where applicable.
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47 Lease disclosures

The following table presents a maturity analysis of expected undiscounted cash flows for lease ljabilities:

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Q-1 year 8,132 18,132
12 years 9,066 18,132
2-5 years - 9,066
More than 3 years - -
Total Lease payments 27,198 45,330
The reconciliation of lease liabilities is as follows:

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Opening batance 40,016] 23,046
Additions - 42,370
Amounts recognized in statement of profit and 3330 3,053
loss as interest expense
Payment of lease liabilities (18,132) (12,153)
Reversals during the year - (16,30
Closing Balance (Refer Note 20 and 24) 25214 40,016

The leases entered by the Company are long term in nature and the underlying leased properties are being used as offices

48 New standards and interpretations, not yet adopted

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standand or amendments to the existing Jards under C

Companies (Indian A i Jards) A

Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework

Financial R; under Indian A

Rules, 2022, applicable from | April 2022, as below:

(Indian A ing Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March 2022, MCA amended the

The amendments spexify that to qualify for m.ogmmm as part of applymg the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liubilities in the Conceptual Framework for
i i ds (C

rork) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not si

The Company does not expect the amendment to have any impact in |ts standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

ly change the requi of Ind AS 103.

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the vost of property. plant and equipment amounts received from selting items produced while the company is preparmb the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will

vecognisc such sales proceeds and refated cost in profit or loss. The Company docs not expoct the amendments to have any impact in ils recognition of its propaty, plant and equip

Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
The amendments spevify that that the *cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises the *costs that relate directly to the contract’, Costs that relate directly to a contract can cither be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be
direct labour, materials) or an altocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The di is

financial statements.

Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity ineludes when it applies the *10 percent” test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial Hability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant

impact in its standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 106 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The dments remove the illustration of the

{ of leasehold imp

inits dalone financial

iatly a clarification and the Company docs 1ot expsct the amendsment to have miy significant impact in its standalone

ts by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of fease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives

were described in that illustration. The Company does not expest the amendment to have uny significant impact in its standalone tinancial statements
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49 Note on Going cancern and Impact of COVID 19

S

s
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The Company is facing liquidity which have been d by unceriainty dus to COVID-19. The Company has posilive net worth of INR 371,059 as at 31 Mareh 2022, incurred a net lass of
INR 808,856 during the year ended 31 March 2022 and, as of that dato, the Company’s current libilities exceeded its curment assets by INR 317,820, As on 31 March 2022, the Company has been
largely funded by term loans from banks, financial institutions and related partics & cevtain debenture instruments and further, the Company has short term borrowings amounting to INR 537,710 as on 31
March 2022 which are due within 12 months of the balance sheet date. The Company has cash and bank balance of INR 482,121 with it as on 31 March 2022 which will assist for meeting its short term
liabilities for next 12 months The business of the Company was impacted during the year on account of COVID-19, During few months of the year, the Company witnessed solter revenues due o the subscquent
waves of COVID-19 and conscquent lockdowns in soveral states across the country

With increased vaceinations and consequent redustion in number of cascs and casing of all restrictions, the Company has witnessed a recovery. Starting from Q3 FY 2022, the Company has demonstrated

improved business performance in teams of Average Room Revenue (ARR) and Occupancy levels ARR and Oceupancy levels in HI FY 2023 have reached INR 4,847 and 77%. The Company has
projected to generate profits from its operations, has undrawn credit facilitics amounting to INR 595,186 as on 31 March 2022 and is expeeting necessary approvals basis application to lenders under
Emergeney Credit Line Guarantee Sebieme ("RCLGS™). Further, there are ongoing discussions for strategic investment into the Company with several investars

The Company has assessed the possible impact of COVID-19 in prep of the standalone financial including but not limited to its assessment of liquidity and going concern assumption,
recoverable values of its financial and non-financiat assets and impact on revenues and costs. The Company has considered internal and extermal sources of i and has p d analysis on
{he assumptions wsed and based on current estimates, expeets to rocover the camying amount of these assets. The impact of COVID-19 may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
standalone finzneial statements and the Company will continue ta closcly monitor any material changes to future cconomic conditions

In view of the above, the management and the Board of Directors believe that the Company will be able to mect all its contractual obligations and hiabilities as and when they fall due in near futwe and
dingly, these standalone financial have been preparcd on a going concem basis

Ratios as required by Schedule 1T to (he Companies Act, 2013:
Ratio in times/% N 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 |Reason for variance
Current Ratio in times Total Current Assets Total Current Liabilities 0.70 0.57 {Since the variance is less than 25%]

there is no requiremant to disclose thel
reason for variance

Debt-Fquity Ratio in times Total Borrowings [Total Equity 112 0.80 [Debt equity ratio has increasced due to
increase $n debt and reduction in other|
cquity dus 1o losses

Dbt Service Coverage Ratio {in times Lass before finance costs, [ebt service : Finance costs 0.04 0.13 |Deht  Service  coverage  mtio has
depreciation, amortisation, {paid + Principal Repaymeants decreased due to increase in interest
tax and exceptional ilems  {of long lerm borrowings payment

Retumn on Equity Ratio in % Loss after tax Average Total Equity -10% -11%]Since the variance is less than 25%,

\here is no requirement to disclose the
reason for variance

Inventory tumover ratio ¢ in times NA NA NA NA
Trade Receivables tumover ratyin times Revenue from operations | Average Trade Receivables 414 131 |Trade  receivables  tumover  ratio
increased due to better cfficiency in|
collections
Trade payables tumover ratio fin times Cost of materials consumed [Average Trade Payables 1.50 1.54 [Since the vanance is less than 25%,
-+ Other expenses there is no requiremant to disclose the,
reason for variance
Net capital tumover ratio  [in times Revenue from operations | Average Working capital (134) (0 78)|The change in net capital tumoyer ratio)
Current ussets — Current is on account of repayment of current]
linbilities borrowings
Net profit ratio in % Net Profit/(loss) Total sales 130% TT98%|Net_ profit ratio imgroved over thel

previous year with an improvement in
business volumes and cost containment!
measures during the year.

Return on Capital cmployed  {in % Loss before inlerestand  {Capital Employed - Tangible 0.09% 1.31%]|Return on capital employed improved
taxes Net Worth + Total with improvement in operating margins|
) during the year.
Retum on investment # in %% NA NA NA NA

The Company has not presented the following ratios duc to the reasons piven below:

* Inventory turnover ratio: Since the Company holds inventory for consumption in the service of food and beverages and the proportion of such inventory is insignificant to Total Asscts.
# Return on imvestments' Since the Company holds surplus fands which are temporary in nature to ensure adequate liquidity ducing the year.

Other statutory information

- The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against The Company for holding any Benami property.

- The Company does not have any transactions with comparics struck off.

- The Company docs not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

- The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

- The Company has not received funds from any ather person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (1 diaries) with the und ding that the cdiary shall;
{a) directly or indirectly lend of invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Bencficiarics

- The Company has not any such transaction which isnot recorded in the books of accaunts that has been surrendered or disclosed as invome daring the year in the tax assessments under the Incoms Tas Act,
1961 {such as, search or survey or any ofher relevant provistons of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

- The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or ather lender (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), in accordance with the guidelines on wiiful defaulters
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52 List of immovable properties not held in the namte of the Company

As at 31 March 2022

Whether title deed holder
{s a promoter,director or
Relevant line item In the | Description of | Gross carrying value relative of . . Reason for not being held in the
ant linefem | e :my o TL) g valu tivs o | Ftdin the name of 1Property held since which date o the wf“p“ny
employee of
promoter/director
Property, plant and equipment {4th Block, 548,000 No SAMHI Hotets Private The sale deed of land is in the name of
Frechold Land Municipal Limited SAMHI Hotels Private Limited which|
No.1/2, 59th'C* was changed to SAMHI Hotels
Cross, 4th 'M' £ imited. Fresh  cedificate  of
Block Aprit 2012 incorporation Conseq‘uenl to change of}
name dated 16 August 2019 was issued
Bangalore. by the Registrar of Companies, Dethi.
Property, plant and equipment {S.Nos. 153/5, 235,107 No SAMHI Hotels Private The sale deed of land is in the name of
Frechold Land 153/6, 153/7 and Limited SAMHI Hotels Private Limited which
153/8, was changed to SAMHI Hotels|
Mambakkam Limited.  Fresh  cettificate o
Viilage, November 2011 incorporation consequent to change of
Sriperumbudur. name dated 16 August 2019 was issued
by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi.
As at 31 March 2021
Whether title deed holder
isa
. promoter,directordirector .
Relevant line item in the | Description of Gross carrying value or relative if Held in the name of |Property held since which date Reason for not bemgAhcld i the
Balance Sheet property " name of the company
promoter/director or
employee of
promoter/director
Property, plant and equipment {4th Block, 548,000 No SAMHI Hotels Private The sale deed of tand is in the name of
Frechold Land Municipal Limited SAMHI Hotels Private Limited which|
No.1/2, 59h'C’ was changed to SAMHI Hotels|
Cross, 4th M Limited. ~ Fresh  cettificate  of
Block, April 2012 incorporation consequent to change of
Rajajinagar, name dated 16 August 2019 was issued
Bangalore. by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi.
Property, plant and equipment 4S.Nos. 153/5, 235,107 No SAMHI Hotels Private The sale deed of land is in the name of
Frechold Land 153/6, 153/7 and Limited SAMHI Hotels Private Limited which
153/8, was changed to SAMHI Hotels
Mambakkam Limited.  Fresh  centificate o
Village, November 2011 incorporation consequent to change of
Sriperumbudur. name dated 16 August 2019 was issued|
by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi.

The original title deads of all immovable properties are under lien with bank for the foan facilities availed by the Company.

o

R

Change In classification

& Pursuant to amendment in Schedute Tl to the Companies Act, 2013, effective from 1 April 2021, the Company has modified the classification of security deposits from "Loans” to "Others” in financial assets

and Current maturities of long-term borrowings from "Others” to "Borrowings” in Current financial liabilities. Comparative amounts in the notes to the financial were recl d for ist

As per earlier Revised classification
reported

Assels

Non current assets

Financial assets

Loans 2,789,069 2,775,764

Others 60,587 76,392

Other current assets - Staff advances 2,500 -

Liabllities

Current liabilities

Financial Habilities

Bomowings 6,607 1,089,624

Others 1,138,005 54,988

b. During the year ended 31 March 2022, Company has revised the presentation of certain notes to the fimancial

were reclassitied for consistency.

for better p

amounts in the notes to the financial statements
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As per eartler reported

Revised classification

Other Expenses
Guest transportation
Travelling expenses

9,082

gencral corparate purposcs and in tre ordinary course of business.

+ Step down subsidiary of SAMHI Hotels Limited

a. Transaction details

Date of loan given to step Details of subsidiary Details of step down subsidiary
Amount
down subsidiary company company company
30-Apr-21 200,000 [Barque Hotels Private Limited |Paulmech Hospitality Private
30-Jun-21 400,000 |CIN: Limited
N USS101DL200SPTCI75957  [CIN:
29-Jul-21 200,0001R egistered Office: Caspia U55101WB2010PTC 151700
Tesep2l 100,500 | Hotels Delhi Disirict Centre  [Registered Office: Plot No. CF-15,
Crossing, Opp. Galaxy Toyota  [PR No.-01-0240 AA-
29-Sep-21 200,000 jOuterRingRd Haider IC Newtown,Rajarhat Kotkata
Pur,Shalimar Bagh Delhi Nosth |Kolkata WB 700156 IN
09-Nov-21 300,000 | west DL 110088
14-Dec-24 2,500,000
22-Feb-22 600,000
28-Feb-22 400,000
31-Mac-22 200,000
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54 During the current year, the Company has gives as interest fres loan repayab at the option of the borcowr amounling o Rs 234,350 on variaus dates to Barque Hotels Private Limited (Subsidiary Company). Ot of the aforesaid amount. INR 3,100 has been

passed through for prosiding an interest bearing loan to Paulmech Hospitality Private Lintited.a wholty owned subsidiary company of Barque Hotels Private Limited * (detaits of which are provided in Note & below). The above loans have been advanced for
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